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ABOUT US

The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) was formally
established under the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance
(Cap 419), to address the need for postgraduate medical and

dental education and training in Hong Kong.

The Academy is an independent institution with statutory power to
organise, monitor, assess and accredit all medical specialist training
and to oversee the provision of continuing medical education in
Hong Kong.

OUR OBJECTS

Objectives of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine are:
» to promote the advancement of the art and science of medicine;
» to foster the development of continuing medical education;

e to promote integrity, ethical conduct and standards in the

practice of medicine and its specialties;

e to promote the improvement of healthcare for Hong Kong

citizens;

e to foster a spirit of cooperation among medical practitioners;
and

» 1o facilitate the exchange of information and ideas in medicine

and matters concerning the medical profession.
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President’s Foreword £ J& P &

— .

“Medical Excellence for a Healthy Future” is
the theme chosen for the 25th anniversary of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine, to promote
the vision that drives us to move forward.
Underpinning this overarching aspiration is a
multifaceted strategy to maintain high-quality
specialist training and clinical practice in Hong
Kong. This report illustrates what we have
accomplished in the past year in upholding high
standards and nurturing talent among medical
and dental professionals, so as to build a

healthy community in Hong Kong.
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In celebration of the silver jubilee of the Academy, we organised
an assortment of activities and events throughout the year that
engaged all of our 15 constituent Colleges and our Fellows. The
anniversary celebration began with the kick-off ceremony, held
in February this year, and our annual media spring luncheon. At
the luncheon, representatives from different Colleges engaged in
lively discussion about the important topic of organ donation in
Hong Kong. In May, we invited distinguished speakers to attend
our Medical Education Conference. The speakers, including
Prof. Sir Terence Stephenson, Chair of the General Medical Council,
deliberated on ways to cultivate professionalism and research
in medical education. To foster involvement from the younger
generation, we organised a forum for young Fellows to share their
experiences. During summer, we held our first-ever Intercollegiate
Basketball Tournament. The players not only offered us rounds of
thrilling matches, but also demonstrated professionalism and team

spirit, which are of utmost importance in medical practice.

In addition to activities for our Fellows, we collaborated with Radio
Television Hong Kong to launch a special 20-episode series with
the aim of introducing the public to the work of the Academy, the
constituent Colleges, our Disaster Preparedness and Response
Institute and our Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine, as well as
disseminating medical knowledge to the community. In December,
we will hold the finale 25th Anniversary Congress with the theme
“Beyond 25: New Paradigms in Healthcare”, gathering local and
international healthcare leaders and experts at the Academy
building to exchange knowledge and experience. None of these
activities would have been successful without the dedication and
tremendous efforts of my colleagues and the Academy Secretariat
staff. My sincere thanks go to the Organising Committee for the
excellent job in making our anniversary year memorable.
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Collaboration is one of the important keywords for the Academy.
Throughout the years, we have built strong networks with medical
schools, colleges and academies, both locally and internationally,
working together to enhance the standards of specialist training.

Specifically, owing to the progressive development of specialist
training in mainland China and the growth of Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Academy has been playing
a strategic role. The Academy has taken part in a number of
collaborative projects on specialist training and emergency
response training with the National Health Commission and
its provincial and municipal departments. For instance,
the Academy signed a Memorandum of Understanding with
the National Health and Family Planning Commission and a
cooperation agreement with the Health and Family Planning
Commission of Sichuan Province. InJanuary, the Academy also
signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Health and
Family Planning Commission of Shenzhen Municipality, HKU
Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine and HKU-Shenzhen Hospital
at the first Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
Hygiene and Health Cooperation Conference. Moreover, we
have been leveraging our expertise and experience to support
the Chinese Medical Doctor Association in the formulation of

a specialist training system in China.

In August, a delegation from the Academy paid a visit to Beijing and
met with Mr. Zhang Xiaoming, Director of the Hong Kong and Macao
Affairs Office of the State Council, to exchange views on healthcare
development in the Greater Bay Area, as well as Ms. Cui Li, Vice-
minister of the National Health Commission, to share updates on
medical specialist training. These activities reaffirm our work in
mainland China over the years and reinforce the foundations for

cooperation in the future.

The Academy also continues to strengthen its bonds with overseas
institutions, in particular, the Academy of Medicine of Malaysia
(AMM) and the Academy of Medicine, Singapore (AMS). It has
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been eight years since we hosted the First AMM-AMS-HKAM
Tripartite Congress in 2010, which is organised every three years.
The Academy will host the Fourth Tripartite Congress in Hong Kong
in 2019.

Fellows to reconnect with old friends, build new friendships and

| believe it will be another golden opportunity for our

extend the collaborative network.

Medical Registration (Amendment)
Ordinance 2018

In April, the Medical Registration (Amendment) Ordinance 2018
was finally enacted after several rounds of debate on the proposed
amendments. One of the key issues for the Academy concerns
two additional seats in the Medical Council of Hong Kong who are
nominated and elected by Academy Fellows. Since last year, we
have been actively communicating with Fellows through various
means to collect their views regarding eligibility, as well as the
nomination and election mechanism for these two additional seats.
An election was held in July and two members were duly elected.
| trust, being elected by our Fellows, that they will support the work
of the Medical Council in a manner aligned with the Academy’s
mission to protect the health of the people of Hong Kong.

Emerging Public Health Challenges

One of the Academy’s statutory missions is to promote the
improvement of healthcare for Hong Kong citizens. Thus, we care
deeply about any issues which may have negative impacts on public
health. Recently, the controversial topic of electronic cigarette use
has again been put on the legislative agenda and there have been
discussions on whether to regulate electronic cigarettes and other
new tobacco and smoking products or to impose a total ban. The
Academy stands firm in its position and we urge the Government to
enact a complete ban on these products.
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Over the past few months, the medical profession has demonstrated
united efforts to protect the health of the community. In June,
the Academy, joining with the CUHK Faculty of Medicine, HKU
Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine and The Hong Kong Medical
Association, hosted a press conference on the issue. The Academy
is also working with the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
to organise a signatory campaign on this policy advocacy and has
co-signed a submission to the Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR.
We should not underestimate the adverse impacts of an emerging
epidemic of addiction which is ensnaring the younger generation.
We consider that a total ban is the best policy to prevent the
prevalence and associated negative effects of these tobacco
products from becoming uncontrollable.

The Academy strives to perform our statutory role to ensure
high standards of specialist training through promoting medical
professionalism and specialty development. For example,
through our Medical Education Conference we aimed to cultivate
professionalism. This year also witnessed progressive development
of our credentialling work. We are pleased that all 15 Colleges
have now established their own credentialling committees and
are developing their own credentialled procedures. To meet
increasingly broad healthcare needs, two new subspecialties were
approved: Clinical Toxicology under the Hong Kong College of
Physicians and Genetics and Genomics (Paediatrics) under the
Hong Kong College of Paediatricians. Furthermore, to foster a high
degree of professionalism, we work together with different Colleges
to regularly review professional standards such as the Guidelines

on Procedural Sedation, which will be promulgated in due course.

HKAM Annual Report 2018

EREAZER  BEAEE—H BD
RELRNER - £6F - BREFHE
PXRBED[R EBREFTRZNEES
RAEEEERILEERTHINE
B BETLAFTBREHEBRRER
E26F RERRREZEMRRES
B WHEERATEEFETHRRBEEX
ER - ERNTREESEEFE K
BP9 A AR 75 Lo 50T B A B 2 7 2R 9
AREE - BB /ABE2ERLELE
BEEm > 4 A LBUEREER BT
SIHIERR -

BERNBETEERE  RABBREX
BIMEBHERBRE  DIBRES KT
ERE - Bl BMBERERHE S
& ELUEBEXRT - SF 0 BB
ERRBBFSFEANIFRERSER
ISERRNBRABERLEEREREERE
CWEHEEBRNERRBRER - &
B ARBRMNBESR  MEHNRN
DERERE > 2RREEARERR
M TEIRASEN  MEERHEB2RMN
TEEERERESEER (ZF) 5 -t
Sh BRYRABEMSEET  BFE
ANENDREERAE  ERERIXR
HEMBRRBAFREFAVES - &858
QIR o



The Way Forward

It has been a challenging but exciting year. | am glad to see the
progress of our approach to enhance positive communication
with Colleges and our Fellows, which is one of my goals as the
President. | hope to organise more engagement activities to help
us better understand and meet their needs, and this is vital for our

improvement.

It is only with the staunch support of all the Past Presidents
and members of our Council and Committees, as well as that of
our Fellows, that we could achieve what we have. Their trust is
invaluable in taking forward our new initiatives and developments.
Looking ahead, built on the strong foundation established by my
predecessors, we will continue in our endeavours to uphold the
standards of specialist training, driving medical excellence in
Hong Kong.

Prof. C.S. Lau

President
September 2018
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President
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Vice-President (General Affairs)
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Vice-President

(Education and Examinations)
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Key Figures at a Glance £ E# 7 — &

Admitted Yt ah T

7,905 256 .

Fellows New Fellows
b+ 2 bt

(as of August 2018) (2017)

(8 Z2018487)
HKAM CME/CPD PROGRAMME MCHK CME PROGRAMME
BHMWEHABREHET/ FWREZEY
FE B R HE 4 B B R R
Since 1996, launched HKAM organised
H 19964 » 47T BT

cycles of CME Programme
EE BRI E B BB RA2

CME activities
1 0 6 1 2 Bt BB B IEE

(09/2017-08/2018)
The 8th cycle started from January 2017.

After the first year of the current cycle:

58 )\ M8 I 91772 201 741 A BA%R o H AR

A5 — AR ORI Provided a total of
LT
of the Fellows have
9 1 q obtained at least 30 points 3 1 38 CME Hours
O mprEsss=+ESH INFEROTEAE B R
? YR

; (09/2017-08/2018)
of the Fellows obtained

2 90 points or above
Yo wpteaEEEn+E
BaBlE

* There are 70 Fellows possessing Fellowship in two or more different specialties
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Highlights of the Year K 2 [o] Jif
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25th Anniversary Celebration TR AR

2018 marks the Silver Jubilee of the Academy. The Academy takes ~BEA20184F » BEEMRBLD

this opportune time to reiterate its core values and celebrate its BEERAFTEANKE  SHREROLE
achievements. The anniversary slogan, “Medical Excellence for a B RAEREFRERBEESHHAT
Healthy Future”, conveys the Academy’s commitment to uphold MEHHTFRR - AFLXNEER
medical professionalism and to nurture young leaders for better TShEEME - BET - AR, c RAER

healthcare. BEAHFEBEEKELEEEFE
HATEHRAGE  MEEERECE
BEARE o

A series of celebration activities have been planned and some were EEARFEEHEE —RINENTE
successfully held during the year, including the following: (BRI EBEKEMET) @ B

Anniversary Celebration Kick-off and Spring Luncheon with Media
(26 February 2018)
BERLTE B BOB 12 B IR (20184F2H 26 H)

Prof. Sophia Chan, Secretary for Food and Health (centre);

Prof. C.S. Lau, President of the Academy (left); and

Dr. C.C. Lau, Chairman of the 25th Anniversary Organising

Committee (right) unveil the 25th anniversary theme, “Medical

Excellence for a Healthy Future”, symbolising a new chapter

in the development of the Academy

B K R AR JR) JR R R 2 R R Ji ()~ BEEEH B R BUR

(Z£) RosFEMEEE ) BIREBIEA () F25 F4E

%ﬁﬂﬁfﬂ’ﬂ TR [SARE - BEA - AR MM - E
HERENE BN —H

Prof. Sophia Chan, Prof. C.S. Lau,
Dr. C.C. Lau, Council Members

of the Academy as well as
representatives of the Academy
Colleges celebrate 25 years of
medical excellence

L - BRI S
18 £ 0 ) B 2 1 % L
Koy B e i A 3R — R B L
e R 25 4F
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Representatives from the Academy, Hong Kong College of Community Medicine, The College of
Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong, Hong Kong College of Physicians, and The College of Surgeons of Hong
Kong discuss the current situation, technology and difficulties in organ transplantation in Hong Kong at
the panel session

R G L A E B - T AR USRS - 7l ARl B SR L M R B
Bl Gk > —F e A as BRIl » BT L 15 2 [N 4

Medical Education Conference (5 May 2018)
HREAFER (20184E5A5H)

Theme: Cultivating Professionalism and Research in Medical Education

Il BEREHENERRTHRBMMR

@: ln:-:u:i &5 1.' : N .:‘E}%
qu-.r-|.-. = I:::qf' J

[ sdairsmay Prof i ar .

Prof. Sophia Chan, Secretary for Food and Health, attend the Opening The Academy also actively engages the younger
Ceremony as the Guest of Honour. Plenary lecturers including Prof. Sir  generation and organises a forum for young Fellows
Terence Stephenson, Chair of the General Medical Council, deliberate to share experience

on ways to cultivate the development of healthcare providers with B R 5 R AR — L 2 B > S AR SRR B L

professional attributes and to nurture research in medical training, R L Y
as well as future directions of post-graduation education

B R R R R B SR R S B8 E > R E

L5 5 Y 55 B A T Terence  StephensonZ% 5w W o] s & HoAl

SRR BB fe 2 h%ﬁ@”ﬁmmen»u&$%
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Highlights of the Year K ¥ [H] JEA

Intercollegiate Basketball Tournament

(30 June 2018 - 11 August 2018, every Saturday)
BEBXEEER LT (20184F6 H30H E8H11H » BEHIN)

The College of Surgeons of Hong Kong wins the championship at the

Intercollegiate Basketball Tournament

e P B R LU R T 2R AT > Ty A oS S RHER BL e A

HKAM 25th Anniversary Special Series
(23 July 2018 - 3 December 2018, every Monday)

(BEHRBEHPERSHEHERY]) (20184E7H23HE12H3H » EEH—)

The Academy collaborates with Radio Television Hong
Kong to launch the HKAM 25th Anniversary Special
Series during the programme *Healthpedia”
BHEREEA M HE - H—FER2EM 2N
25 FI4F R 1)

Finale 25th Anniversary Congress (7 - 9 December 2018)

JEEHETH : 25 REAL ST (20184E12H7HE9H)

Theme: Beyond 25: New Paradigms in Healthcare FE - wEERE - BEHE

The finale 25th Anniversary Congress will be held on 7-9 December  25@F 4 EFEAIN2018F1287THE
2018. Two major lectures, Halan Lecture and David Todd Oration, 9HR1T - SRHEPMEEEMFEE—
will be delivered by Dr. Humayun Chaudhry, Chair, International — f@ &8 EEAVERZIEFERE » 459 5l B Bl BR B
Association of Medical Regulatory Authorities, and Prof. K.Y. Yuen, BEEEEBEHEEFHumayun Chaudhry
Henry Fok Professor of Infectious Diseases and Chair of Infectious BENMBEABREZENESRBEY S
Diseases, Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine, The University of Hong ABEARREABHIEER -

Kong, respectively.
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24th Annual General Meeting

The Academy held its Annual General Meeting on 15 December
2017 at Lim Por Yen Lecture Theatre.
report of the Council, the Honorary Treasurer’s report, the audited

During the meeting, the

accounts, the appointment of the auditor and the admission of new
Fellows were endorsed.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance, an
election was held in July to September 2017 for the five Elected
Members. Five eligible nominations were received, and the
candidates were elected ipso facto. Their 2-year term of office

began immediately after the AGM.

The results of the election were announced at the meeting. Results
are listed below:

Elected Members

BIELRE AL Z B P E o B B
Dr. P.P. Chen Anaesthesiologists
B EEL iRt

Prof. Gabriel Leung Community Medicine
REEHE HEHE

Dr. H.T. Luk Surgeons

B R SR

Dr. W.L. Tang Pathologists
BEmEL EIEEER

Dr. Clara Wu Emergency Medicine
AR B AL SER

(From left) Prof. Martin Wong, Dr. C.C. Lau,

Prof. C.S. Lau, Prof. Gilberto Leung and

Dr. Y.F. Chow

(7o) R B8R - BIESIRAE - BIREH

%~ RFE B SR W B

ST Y JeE P AR

BEEN2017TF12B 15 HEMARERE
ERTEHNERFRE  KELBEB
REEZEg®RE ZBAFERS - &H
RE ~ BB TS - DI A GBS
Hhgt o

R (BEBEENERGKL) @ BF
R20TTETHZEOR BT 7 2E - LY
ZENOIEAEERE - ARRELWEISH
BRRAEE  BREAYEBER M
FAEHBRFRSRIIAFES -

RBEERERERGLAM =18
s

College(s) to which the Elected Members belongs

Note: Honorary Secretary Prof. Henry Chan was unable to attend the AGM
it BEWER I T RIRA BRI A FEARE

F SR 20184 13
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24th Annual Fellowship Conferment SEH DY i B A A X

:
Ceremony

The 24th Annual Fellowship Conferment Ceremony was held on  ZHMER TEEE&ERN2017E128
15 December 2017 at the Run Run Shaw Hall. A total of 256 ~ 15H7EAMR R AREERTT » &N LK
Academy Fellows were conferred. AT 256 REERL -

President Prof. C.S. Lau delivers the

welcome speech

o 1 A SR

The officiating party of the 24th Annual Fellowship

Conferment Ceremony

B 1 i Bt AR AR FR N B B

AT Al XEk -_.JII:HL“F:'I W MEDECTNE
5 £
_;F' % HQ:":I' S gl Y | T
ILx | &

Past President Dr. Donald Li, was conferred the Honorary

Fellowship in recognition of his outstanding achievements
and contributions to the medical profession, the Academy

and the community

R AT 35 M8 2 1 R B8 2R I 4 B B DA SR B L i
FRRE e S B A R R i K
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Appreciation and Recognition

RE A

During the ceremony, plaques of appreciation were presented

to the following former Council Members in recognition of their

services and contributions to the Academy Council:

Prof. Ignatius Yu - Editor
(December 2010 - December 2016)

Dr. S.K. Chan - Ex Officio Member
(December 2014 - December 2016)

Dr. H.F. Ho - Ex Officio Member
(September 2011 - October 2017)

Prof. Annie Cheung - Ex Officio Member
(November 2013 - November 2017)

Dr. S.H. Tsui - Elected Member
(December 2015 - December 2017)

The plagues have also been sent to the following former Council

Members who were unable to attend the conferment ceremony,

including:

Prof. T.F. Fok - Ex Officio Member
(December 2003 - December 2006) and Vice-President
(General Affairs) (December 2012 - December 2016)

Prof. William Wei - Ex Officio Member

(October 1995 - February 2002),

Elected Member (December 2005 - December 2012) and
Honorary Treasurer (December 2012 - December 2016)

Dr. John Liu - Ex Officio Member
(August 2015 - August 2017)

Dr. P.C. Chow - Ex Officio Member
(May 2013 - May 2017)

Dr. John Woo - Ex Officio Member
(November 2013 - November 2017)

Dr. S.F. Hung - Ex Officio Member
(December 2006 - December 2010)
and Elected Member (December 2011 - December 2017)

BUNER  LUTARBRESRERBER

HhE > DIREABPIFTEHAVERR -

REFHIE — RE
(201012 BE 201612 A)

BRItABE A — BRES
(2014 FE 12 AE 2016412 8)

IEEEY —BAREE
(20N E9RE201THET0H)
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Highlights of the Year K 3% [A] J&i

Best Original Research by Trainees (BORT)
S 58 A B 9 3¢

This prize aims to recognise excellence in research conducted by
doctors during specialist training. Results of the 2017 BORT were:

Medal Winner (College)

3k BIEE (SRHEER)

Gold Medal Dr. Crystal Lee

&g (The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong)
FIresss (HBTREER)

Silver Medal Dr. James Chow

§RAS (Hong Kong College of Radiologists)

RETELE (EERGNESR)

Dr. Y.H. Chan
(Hong Kong College of Physicians)
BRIBERELE (EBRREESR)

Bronze Medal

R

Best Original Paper Award (BOPA)
B A

The Best Original Paper Award (BOPA), presented by the Editorial
Board of the Hong Kong Medical Journal, aims to encourage original
writings of good quality by doctors. Dr. Esther Chan, corresponding
author, received the 2017 BOPA on behalf of Agnes Y.S. Chung et
al. from Prof. Martin Wong, Editor of the Academy, for the paper
entitled “Improving medication safety and diabetes management

in Hong Kong: a multidisciplinary approach”.

()
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RIBEREXRGB2ENEXEEENT
AREBEIENT 5870 E EUS BE H plg - 2017
FREZERAINFRENGERUT ¢

Title of Research

wrsEE H

Neuroprotective, Analgesic, and Antioxidative
Effects of Melatonin in Surgical Patients: a Double-
blinded, Randomized, Controlled Clinical Trial

Risk of second primary tumors in patients with
nasopharyngeal carcinoma following definitive
intensity-modulated radiotherapy

Life-Long Burden of Vitamin D Deficiency
Increases Clinical Cardiac Events and Death
Unraveled by An Exome Chip-Derived Multi-Loci
Genetic Risk Score: A Mendelian-Randomized
Study

KERAWXER (BEEEHE)
MEEZEGQRT  EESRBEBLEER
BENRAIXE - 201 TENRERE
MXRABERETEEAHAEER
FRBNNFECBFERRSE - B8
MFEREZEFLARER  wXE
B4 "Improving medication safety and
diabetes management in Hong Kong: a
multidisciplinary approach ; °

Prof. Martin Wong (left) presents the Best Original
Paper Award to Dr. Esther Chan (right)

wEARR (L)
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Award for the 25th Anniversary Logo Design Competition

T R AR AL AR RS R R B AR

The Academy marks the 25th anniversary in 2018. In celebration — B2ER2018FEEBMAKII25FFE © AEM
of this milestone, the Academy organised a logo design competition  EEEBHERE - BHRNELF4F 8
in last April. The winner of the competition, Dr. C.K. Lo, a Fellow 1R55:2:THE - hBNERERT B
of the Hong Kong College of Orthopaedic Surgeons received the — FHEER MV FEEL - BRENXN
award at the conferment ceremony. THERHGEREIT

Special Tribute to the Academy’s Founding President

1) 1 e 5 3 & 3 Bk

On 16 August 2017, the Academy was deeply saddened by the  BIfr EfEEREBEHIFN2017T4E8H16H
passing of our Founding President, Prof. Sir David Todd. President  Bfit » BB RE)IESEHIT - THEENZE
Prof. C.S. Lau paid a special tribute to Prof. Todd at the conferment ~ E#H X AIER TEEFEERN LMEHRR
ceremony. B o

A special tribute to Prof. David Todd at the

conferment ceremony

e A4 e X A R 1) 2 MR AR A BR

2017 David Todd Oration
20174 12 2 s A

David Todd Oration was inaugurated in 1995 to pay tribute to  JZEZRIBFEEN1995F 87 BHA T A
the founding President of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine,  BlIft =@ ELBHIZE M MK © LIES
Prof. Sir David Todd, in recognition of his profound contribution to ~ i BEMELNER - BEREFR
the Academy. The Academy was privileged to have Prof. Gabriel =B BREFEHEE R RREEHIR
Leung, Dean of Medicine of The University of Hong Kong, as the — #F&Ez¢  #HE & " Coming Full Circle ©

Orator and delivered a talk on “Coming Full Circle”.

Prof. C.S. Lau (right) and the Orator, Prof. Gabriel Leung (left)

PIEHR (h) Bz ERAFEEIR (5)
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September

2017 Summit Forum of China’s
Standardised Medical Residency Training

201 74 A e B Fill K58 Al % Sl vy 0 g L

A delegation of Academy representatives attended the Summit
Forum of China’s Standardised Medical Residency Training
organised by the Chinese Medical Doctor Association (CMDA)
in Beijing during 9-10 September 2017. On 10 September,
the Academy hosted a special HKAM session that Officers and
College representatives shared the experience of Hong Kong,
covering the specialist training system as well as training for
different specialties including medicine, surgery, obstetrics
and gynaecology, and paediatrics. This collaboration with
CMDA has greatly encouraged knowledge and experience
exchange between the Academy and mainland counterparts.

BEAXKEHE Y201 7F9R0BET10APEEMBEE
ERERNEGEMAE N FERE - 9100 B
BRPTEE  HBRZLIPNERRRIZDELER > A
RREFBNEREIIGE - MAARERNBREAR - 4
M RENMMERNEIIRE -  RRETREMBENG
TRl Y B R At B 2Rz EARBAKERIIM -
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Signing of Cooperation Framework
Agreement with Health and Family
Planning Commission of Sichuan Province
B EmAamGE T REBETEEGF
HEZE 1o

On 27 September 2017, the Health and Family Planning
Commission of Sichuan Province and the Academy signed a
Cooperation Framework Agreement to collaborate on medical
education and specialist training. Director of Health and
Family Planning Commission of Sichuan Province Mr. Shen Ji
attended the signing ceremony,

20174 9H27TH M) BBANFBLEREGHER
HZETEFERwZ  TEEHBNERNZISTEHRE
AE - N EAEENFEEEZEGNEFTLEESE
3% -



.......................................... 10,

October

Council Dinner — Medical Council of Hong
Kong and Dental Counecil of
Hong Kong

MEREEME —HTHREEZEGLEE
FTREMETZEY

The Academy Council hosted a dinner with guests of the
Medical Council of Hong Kong (MCHK) and the Dental Council
of Hong Kong (DCHK) on 19 October 2017. The Council dinner
provided a good networking opportunity for Council members
to strengthen the relationship with counterparts in the medical
profession.

2017TF10R19R > BERBKEZEGRERBHEBELER
EEREBFTEEEREENAR  BUNBRREERES
REHESRNBE -

.......................................... 1L

November

Signing of MOU on Emergency Response
Training with the National Health and
Family Planning Commission

PI%ﬁiﬂﬁﬂ HLZHEREWHAERE
S RE (S Y

On 1 November 2017, the Academy President met with Vice
Minister of National Health and Family Planning Commission
(NHFPC; now as National Health Commission) of PRC Ms.
Cui Li as well as other senior officials in Beijing to discuss
the collaboration on specialist training and emergency
preparedness and response training. The Academy also
signed a Memorandum of Understanding with NHFPC on
Emergency Response Training.

017TE1TRATR BEERELXRERKFEMGELES
ZEg (HZEHE BrRZALERERES) EER
FEAEMABESE @ IRIERFIINESBEEING
FRE - BEETRRZFATZRERNTLEESEING
RS °

TSRS 20184 FEHE 1O
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.......................................... 1L

November

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and
Medical Alumni Golf Tournament

BH L EERRA R RKRILE

On 1 November 2017, the Golf Tournament organised
annually for members of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
and medical alumni of the two universities was held at the

Hong Kong Golf Club (Fanling). A total of 94 Academy Fellows
as well as alumni of HKU and CUHK joined the tournament.

2017TF11R1R BELBERRABBRRLEBES
BEEAIRE (HENRS) BT BERMBMEHM
BREESERLEEBRENTBPIXRENRK -

Council Dinner - Distinguished

Young Fellows

BiHs & B g E— A E TR L

Council Members congratulated the distinguished young

Fellows on their outstanding achievements at the Council
Dinner held on 16 November 2017.

20171 TH16H  EZESNHBRE LMERH KRR
FBRE -

.......................................... 12,

December

Visit by School of Public Health, Zhejiang
University

WL R B2 S A 22 e B35

The delegation from the School of Public Health of Zhejiang
University paid a visit to the Academy on 6 December 2017.
Prof. Li Lu, Director General of the Education, Science and
Technology Department of the Liaison Office of the Central
People’s Government in the HKSAR, also attended the meeting.

They had discussions on the development of specialist training
and public health in Zhejiang and Hong Kong.

2017E12H6R » FIRBARFESELEAKREZIEHE
B ARARBAHEBFNTHREBEBERAZHER
BREERREERETE% L —RNREENIESER
EIFAKBESENRE -
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January

4th General Congress of the Chinese
Medical Doctor Association

H el 5l B SR DUk 2 Bl g HIRER R
The Academy representatives attended the 4th General
Congress of Chinese Medical Doctor Association (CMDA)
held in Beijing on 8-9 January 2018, and joined a discussion

forum to exchange views with the President and newly elected
Council members of CMDA.

BEEARLFE2018F1 A8AEIB IR BITH R AT
WEENRAEHEENERAE > LR E LEPEEAD
BEFEERNERNEZERBRER -

Ist Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao

Greater Bay Area Hygiene and Health
J J S

Cooperation Conference

ERZE 23 N XY Sy (N

The Academy signed a Memorandum of Understanding on
Shenzhen-Hong Kong collaboration on specialist training with
the Health and Family Planning Commission of Shenzhen
Municipality, HKU Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine and HKU-
Shenzhen Hospital at the 1st Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area Hygiene and Health Cooperation Conference
held in Huizhou, Guangdong on 9 January 2018.

201841890  BEERRYIFHENFBEBES S -
EAABEEHEERREE AR RREREMNE
BN AR B SRR BELRREAEAS LEE T RS
SRIB AT A R -

Assessment Workshop
S5 I ek A A

The Education Committee of the Academy organised an
Assessment Workshop on 6-7 January 2018, which aimed
to provide College representatives with an opportunity to
keep abreast of the good practices in assessment, share the
assessment experiences and discuss assessment standards/
methods relevant to postgraduate training. A total of 31
participants from 14 Colleges attended the workshop.

EEHEEEGN2018F1A6AETHBWMER I
BIfEY  BAMERMAXRTBIRNREER @ IR
RS D 2 TR KT BRI H A TR AR%E /
Fik o TEEBEREE 31 ZRE 1MESRIZERREM -

FREARE 2018 KRG 2]
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January

The 2018 Annual Scientific Meeting of
CMA, 2nd Pak-China Medical Congress
and Belt and Road Forum of Medical
Associations

20184 P HE RS 2 oy B flg 4R g B SR " Erp 2
BERkgE [ BE2EL2gm

The Academy representatives presented on medical education
and disaster management experience at the Belt and Road
Forum organised by the Chinese Medical Association (CMA)
on 26-27 January 2018. They also had a special meeting
with the CMA representatives to exchange views.
BEEAKRHFE2018F 18260 E2THH P HEERESEN
N —%—, BEE2aRE  INBEEEESEHFMK
HESEENCHMBREN - tMBHEPERSSRHRE
TYRRE®  RBRER -
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Career Talk for Interns

B B S

The Academy co-organised a Career Talk for interns with
Hospital Authority on 20 January 2018 at the Academy building
featuring highlights from the centrally-coordinated recruitment
exercise for resident trainees. The Academy President briefed
the interns on postgraduate specialist training, and also
introduced the function, facilities and developments of the
Academy. The Career Talk attracted over 100 interns who
were enthusiastic about specialist training.

2018F1H20R @ BEHEEREERAM T BEEEENR
BE - BEEMNEEBRERBENINTRAZHEL
- BEXIRMETBREBN T EBENBENEIITE
DRESHThAE - RMELEE - BERS| TH100HE
MIFIIERBNEBEEHE

PAN-CHIM MEDCONS

—H—l EEZ2itn

Belt and Road Forum of Medical ASSOCialGS
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Spring Luncheon with Media

GRS

On 26 February 2018, the Academy hosted its annual
spring luncheon with media. Central to the luncheon event
was an extensive discussion on the challenges surrounding
organ donation. Representatives from the Academy, Hong
Kong College of Community Medicine, The College of
Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong, Hong Kong College of
Physicians, and The College of Surgeons of Hong Kong
discussed the current situation, technology and difficulties in
organ transplantation in Hong Kong at the panel session.

20185 2H26R  BEER—F-EMBEEEE - 5
NEZRHLKTENHRE > TERGHREREMEHEAL
B-BE HEMIBESER  DERMESR  TER
MESREEEEIHNESRENARETEIRE L —F
BEBRBEBERR  BEKMEAMEZRE -

March

“Transplant Ethies: Looking Forward”
Conference

[P RERK | &k

The conference, jointly organised by the Academy, Department
of Surgery, Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of The University of
Hong Kong and The University of Chicago Medicine, was held
on 24 March 2018. The Academy Vice-President (Education
and Examinations) and overseas and local speakers discussed
the future of transplantation with a focus on the ethical issues
across Western and Chinese cultures. The conference was
conducted in an interactive case-based format and attracted
around 50 participants.

HER - FERETEABEZ2RIRERMZ MFR2EH
SEMNEHEN2018F3A24HET - BHEIERF (HE
KERER) RRBBIIMEBNEERS N RBENR
REgR  LHEAAFNRBESUENMERE - SR UEE
RGP ET - ERBHS0ZLME -
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Medical Indemnity Forum

S ViR N

The Young Fellows Chapter (YFC) of the Academy organised the
Medical Indemnity Forum at the Queen Elizabeth Hospital on 14 April
2018, aiming to enhance Fellows’ understanding of both types of
coverage available in medical indemnity insurance, i.e. occurrence-
based and claim-based policies. Representatives from insurance
brokers were also invited to introduce different alternatives available

in the market.

BENFERLIAEN2018F4R 140 EFPAIMABEEM T 5

........ : H o

March

Sun Yat-sen International Forum on Medical Education
Ex B e SO
EF' [J-l 25 %3’ IEI Mé Ay ff

On 30-31 March 2018, the Academy President attended the Sun Yat-sen
International Forum on Medical Education co-organised by The First Affiliated
Hospital of the Sun Yat-sen University (SYSU), Zhongshan School of Medicine
of SYSU and Guangdong Medical Doctor Association in Guangzhou. He
delivered a presentation on “Trainer development: Asian perspectives” and
moderated a session on medical education in Greater Bay Area. He also joined
a meeting with representatives from Guangdong, Macao and Hong Kong to
discuss possible collaborations on specialist training.

BEXEN2018F3A30E3TH2 MY ARILRERBEE—EL » I
REFUNBEGNEREEMBSEEMNERNRLESHERE - £F
BR RDNEEEREREMERE ) WERE  YEBERNEREEHK
BRRMETER  DUREKRSRER RPIATENARESEREI
HBTE -

9\'111 posium on Healthcare Facilities Management
R S A 4 BT S

The Symposium, jointly organised by the Academy and the Department
of Health was held on 7 April 2018 at the Academy building. It focused
on the existing legislation relevant to the operation of private healthcare
facilities and issues on infection control. The symposium attracted
around 550 participants.

HESNHEEHESRRNMTEN2018F4RTEEBERER
17 - Mg EBERLEBEREEFRBIORITIDEMKREHR
IR < JEEIRS| T K550 B HE -

BREXSAMNE  SEMARTHBREERRTMERRER

HIsRH > BIRUERBERER LR ENE

ZIRERE 2 RBR - &

BTBE T RBRERARNMBHS LARNERRBES -

2/ HKAM Annual Report 2018



4th Medical Education Conference

58 O ST

The Academy organised the 4th Medical Education Conference
(MEC) on 5 May 2018. This year's theme is “Cultivating
Professionalism and Research in Medical Education”,
attracting around 220 participants.
BEENR2018F5AHBTENERERBER  SFN
TERA "HEEREHENEXBRTHEMME, H g&ER
S|E220/2ME -

Visit to HKU-Shenzhen Hospital

2B BB REZFINE R

The Academy delegation visited The University of Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Hospital (HKU-SZH) on 4 May 2018 and had a
meeting with the officials of the Health and Family Planning
Commission and Public Hospital Administration of Shenzhen
Municipality; and senior management staff and representatives
of HKU-SZH. Discussions covered collaboration on specialist
training between Hong Kong and Shenzhen. The delegation
also visited the hospital facilities such as smart pharmacy,
emergency rooms and operation rooms.

BERKXERN2018F5H4028FBRERYIEKR > I
ERYHRENFEEBTRZEGRRYTEEPOLHN
x BRMERAEEAEEH  TREBERIINZENE
MIEIIEIE - KRET2ETBERENERER  =2EM
FREERME

[P ONCE T
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Meeting with Food and Health Bureau and
UK Counterparts on Specialist Training
and Manpower Planning

SR Wy X i 2 A e e S 5 R e SR
S R NIRTE

On 8 May 2018, the President and Officers hosted a meeting
to exchange views and experience in specialist education
and training with Secretary for Food and Health Prof. Sophia
Chan and senior directorate officials from the Food and Health
Bureau of the HKSAR Government and UK counterparts
including Chair of General Medical Council Prof. Sir Terence
Stephenson. It was suggested that a comprehensive
manpower projection for specialists would be crucial in
healthcare service delivery.

20184F5H8H ' EFELABFHBEBFER/TRYREE
BERERBBHEMNHEMES » UIAKEEERERBRFER
BlEBRE T ETerence StephensonBH R R MERHE
HINERNAR HeERARMMNEREBEARE
HRNRHERRETHEE -
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June

Signing Ceremony of CMS-HKAM

Alliance Member Center Agreement
5% B8 5 ol B R AR 4 v o B R L T

The Academy is designated as an Alliance Member of the
Center for Medical Simulation (CMS). The signing ceremony
was held on 20 June 2018 with the participation of the
Academy’s Officers, Honorary Director of the HKJCILCM and
CMS Faculty members.

BIRXERBREEEREDOERABEKE  #1
BINN2018F6 20 81T HERINZEREES
HEE EEAESQANMBEREEIITONBERER
BELREDONREK -

A Joint Call to Ban Electronic Cigarettes
and Other New Tobacco Products

b B B ik 22 T 2% Ak FE T R b B
FE i

The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine, Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of The University of Hong Kong, Faculty of Medicine
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and The Hong Kong
Medical Association held a joint press conference on 19
June 2018 urging the Government to impose a total ban on
electronic cigarettes and other new tobacco products.

B ERARETENESR e8P XRBEERRE
BEESRRBUNTEHELETEREMFEEER » I
MR2018E6A19HBITYHAMERME -

H

July

206 HKAM Annual Report 2018

Visit by West China Hospital of Sichuan
University

VY 1 R 22 a5y B g B Bl

The delegation from the West China Hospital of Sichuan
University paid a visit to the Academy on 26 July 2018. The
Academy President and hospital representatives exchanged
experience on specialist training as well as training on disaster
preparedness and response.

20185 TH26R @ MIIKRBEREHRAKEZNES &
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52nd Malaysia-Singapore Congress of
Medicine

o T e S 2R VY R Rk

The delegation of the Academy attended the Malaysia-
Singapore Congress of Medicine on 27-29 July 2018. Council
Members of the academies of medicine in Malaysia, Singapore
and Hong Kong also met at the Joint Council Meeting to update
each other on the latest developments of medical training.

2018F7H27E29R - BEAKRER T BRAE—H N
WESEE - BRAD - IR EEBNENERNELT
THMEEREEEE LT BRI ERESEI T AR
B

August

Visit to the Greater Bay Area
K85 [ 7% 5 45 Bl

The Academy President joined the HKSAR delegation led
by the Secretary for Food and Health Prof. Sophia Chan to
visit the Greater Bay Area (Guangzhou, Zhongshan and
Shenzhen). He also shared the Academy’s experience on
specialist training of family physicians and its work to support
the standardisation of specialist training system in mainland
China at a forum co-organised by Health and Family Planning
Commission of Guangdong Province and Food and Health
Bureau of the HKSAR Government on 6 August 2018.

RYAFERBRERBEVRFRTETEFEARESIBAKR
B (BN PIRF) - BEXE2MEFEE - X
E2018FCH6HAEREMANFHLEBTZESNEHE
FERERYALERBSERNMNEL  HFEFER
JE B8 2 2 R | 75 T RO AR BR A Kt FP B PO 34 B R LR BE
ARE LI EHITAE -
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August

Visit to the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs
Office of the State Council

Wl ] 180 265 e 8 1 2 5 e O =

The Academy delegation visited the Hong Kong and Macao
Affairs Office of the State Council and had a meeting with
the Director Mr. Zhang Xiaoming on 31 August 2018. They
exchanged views on healthcare development in the Greater
Bay Area.

201848A31H » BERXELARKFITBREEMATR
BERFESE THAEENEERERHRER -

Visit to the Peking Union Medical College
Hospital

25 1B AL 5% i A

The President and other senior management staff of the Peking
Union Medical College Hospital welcomed the Academy
delegation on 31 August 2018. The delegates and Hospital
representatives shared views and experience on specialist
training programme.

IRBNELR R ABSREEAEBN201848H 31 HER
ESAXE  ERAKRAEREIIRESZER LR

Dinner with the National Health Commission

S R AR B

The delegation had dinner with Vice-minister Ms. Cui Li and other senior officials of the
National Health Commission. They also shared views and updates on medical specialist
training in China and Hong Kong.

BEEAXEERZALRRZESERR TEAEMSRBEEHLERSE - (MIESD
FYHEMEBEEREISTENERMEHIER
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Council and Committees’ Reports
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The Council comprises 26 members, including 6 Officers, 15
ex-officio members (College Presidents) and 5 elected Council
members. The 2-year term of the 5 elected Council members began
on 15 December 2017. Business transacted at the regular Council
meetings mainly included certification for specialist registration;
endorsement of papers and reports of the Council’'s Committees;
deliberation on different healthcare policies and consultation;
consideration of mainland and overseas collaboration; and debates
on matters related to the specialty Colleges and their training

programmes, and so on.

The Council also discussed and prepared submissions to the
HKSAR Government in response to the consultation on healthcare
policies and/ or particular matters of public interests, and suggest
measures/ actions with regard to those policies/ matters. Specialty
Colleges are invited to provide inputs, which will be incorporated

into the written submissions.

(09/2017-08/2018)

Written Submission

The written submissions to the HKSAR Government during the year
of 2017-2018 (as at August 2018) included the following:

Medical Registration (Amendment) Bill 2017

2017 Policy Address
(delivered on 11 October 2017)

2018-19 Budget

2018 Policy Address
(to be delivered on 10 October 2018)

Open Letter on Raising Tobacco Tax
(co-signed with the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health)

Open Letter on Advocating a Total Ban on New Tobacco Products
(co-signed with the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health)

HKAM Annual Report 2018
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Officials of the HKSAR Government and
organisations/ institutions such as the Food and Health Bureau,

representatives of

Department of Health and Hospital Authority were invited to meet
the Council on several occassions, mainly to provide background
information or share details with members concerning specific
agenda items that required Colleges’ involvement or members’
inputs. In April 2018, representatives from the Food and Health
Bureau were invited to the meeting and exchange views on the
pressing need for a strategic manpower planning and projection of
specialists. The Academy’s views and standpoint on the provision
of resources designated for postgraduate medical education and
specialist training were clearly communicated to the Bureau.
Extensive analysis reports on the needs were also submitted by
Academy Colleges.

During the past year, the regular Annual General Meeting and an
Extraordinary General Meeting to admit Academy Fellows were
held on 15 December 2017 and 21 June 2018 respectively.

In April 2018, the Medical Registration (Amendment) Ordinance
2018 that also revised the composition of the Medical Council of
Hong Kong (MCHK) was enacted. The Academy would have two
additional seats to be nominated and elected by Academy Fellows
in accordance with the Academy’s regulations and procedures.
The two representatives nominated by the Academy Council and
appointed by the Chief Executive would be unchanged under the
Ordinance. The total number of the Academy’s seats in the MCHK
would thus become four. The Academy will continue to play an
important role in the MCHK to safeguard the professional standards
of the medical profession in order to help protect the health of the

community.

The Academy engaged Fellows in extensive consultations
regarding the eligibility, nomination and election mechanism
of the two additional members from the Academy in the MCHK
since October 2017 through a survey and a forum. The majority
of Fellows agreed that no prerequisite requirements or conditions
would be needed for the Academy’s representatives, who should be

nominated and elected by all Fellows. An election was conducted
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Council and Committees’ Reports
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by postal ballot in July 2018, with three candidates running for the
two additional seats. A candidate forum was held in July 2018 to
provide opportunities for the candidates to deliver their manifesto

and answer enquiries, and the postal ballot ended in late August

2018. The election results were subsequently announced in
September 2018.

The new term of office of the Young Fellows Chapter (YFC) began
on 1 July 2018. Members, nominated by the 15 Colleges, were all
conferred fellowship within the last 10 years. The main purpose
of the YFC is to nurture young leadership by involving young
Fellows in the Academy’s activities and affairs to better understand
the Academy’s objectives. In April 2018, the YFC organised the
Medical Indemnity Forum, inviting representatives from insurance
companies to introduce their products for medical specialists and a
laywer to speak on medico-legal issues.

The Academy maintains close relationship with China counterparts
to promote collaboration on specialist and emergency response
training through frequent, multi-directional exchanges. Several
memoranda of understanding were signed with the National
Health and Family Planning Commission (now as National Health
Commission) and its departments in Sichuan Province and
Shenzhen Municipality, as well as HKU-Shenzhen Hospital and so
on. The Academy has been actively participating in the annual
forum organised by the Chinese Medical Doctor Association in
Beijing with a special session of experience sharing delivered by
representatives of several Academy Colleges. During the year,
the Academy also had exchange opportunities with different
organisations such as Chinese Medical Association, Guangdong
Medical Doctor Association, West China Hospital of Sichuan

University and so on.
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The ftripartite relationship with the Academy of Medicine of
Malaysia (AMM) and the Academy of Medicine, Singapore (AMS)
continues. The 4th AMM-AMS-HKAM Tripartite Congress will
be held at the Academy in December 2019. The Academy is
exploring to form an alliance with academies in Asian countries to
consolidate international collaborative efforts in raising standards of

postgraduate medical education and training.

Continuing Medical Education (CME) / Continuous Professional
Development (CPD)

The Academy has implemented its mandatory CME for Fellows
since 1996. The 8th cycle started on 1 January 2017. According to
the records in the iCMECPD system (11 Colleges involved), about
91% of Fellows have obtained at least 30 points, and about 27%
have obtained 90 points or more, after the first year of the cycle.

Since 1 January 2008, all Colleges have capped the passive CME/
CPD points allowed per cycle at 75 points or below. Under the
2017-19 guidelines, Fellows are strongly advised to maintain
a balanced CME/CPD profile with a mix of different activities.
Colleges may recommend their Fellows to include 5 points in a cycle
from “Quality Assurance and Audits” in their CME/CPD activities.

CME Subcommittee

Under the Education Committee, a CME Subcommittee was
established to take care of matters relating to the CME programme
launched by the Medical Council of Hong Kong (MCHK), which
is formally known as “CME Programme for Practising Doctors
who are not taking CME Programme for Specialists” (MCHK CME
Programme). This Subcommittee vets and awards CME points for
activities organised by CME providers. It also plans and offers,
with support from Academy Colleges, yearly dedicated CME
activities for registrants of the Programme, including those of other
CME administrators. The Subcommittee is currently chaired by
Dr. Angus Chan.
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MCHK CME Programme

Council and Committees’ Reports
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This Programme was introduced by MCHK in 2001 for doctors

who were not taking CME programme for specialists. The Academy

was appointed Programme Administrator, Accreditor and Provider

of this programme. The CME Subcommittee formed under the

Education Committee takes care of this programme.

As at 31 August 2018, there were 522 doctors registered with the
Academy, either directly or via the Colleges, for the MCHK CME

programme.

The Academy has provided over 3,100 hours of CME including

those CME activities organised by Colleges and opened up for non-
Fellows from 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018.
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Number of Activities and Hours Organised by the Academy for the MCHK CME Programme
(September 2017 — August 2018)

B ﬁ‘ﬂ‘i’%ﬁﬁ% Llﬁﬂ%' S RBCA A P SR SRR O H R R

(20174F9H =

Category
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Conference/ Lecture/ Meeting/ Seminar/ Symposium
KRG/ EH/ GF/ g/ XS

Course

B

Discussion
Bk
Self-study
B

Video-viewing

RERBE

Workshop
T1rp

TOTAL
B
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New Subspecialties

The Education Committee and Council have approved two new
subspecialties: “Clinical Toxicology” and “Genetics and Genomics
(Paediatrics)” under the Hong Kong College of Physicians and
the Hong Kong College of Paediatricians respectively. They have
subsequently been approved by MCHK for the Specialist Register.

Assessment Workshop

An assessment workshop was organised for College’s personnel
who are responsible for examination/ assessment in January 2018.
It aimed to provide Colleges with an opportunity to keep abreast
of the good practices in assessment, share the assessment
experiences and discuss assessment standards/ methods relevant

to postgraduate training.

Credentialling Committees

15 Colleges has established their own Credentialling Committees
and are gradually identifying and developing their own credentialled
procedures.

Review of Guidelines on Procedural Sedation

A working group on Review of Guidelines on Procedural Sedation
was formed in August 2017 to review the Academy’s prevailing
Guidelines on Procedural Sedation. With inputs from different
Colleges and reference to related best practices for procedures and
guidelines concerning sedation/ anaesthesia, it was endorsed by
the Council in July 2018.
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Best Original Research by Trainees (BORT)

This prize aims to recognise excellence in research conducted by
doctors during specialist training. Results of the 2017 BORT were:

Gold Medal Dr. Crystal Lee
i (The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong)

FIrERE (EBTRESRR)

Silver Medal Dr. James Chow

Fines (Hong Kong College of Radiologists)
AETEE (BBRSRESER)

Bronze Medal Dr. Y.H. Chan

BiGIpus (Hong Kong College of Physicians)

BRIBIEEE (BEANESR)

Certification for Specialist Registration (CSR)

According to the Medical Registration Ordinance (MRO) and
Dentists Registration Ordinance (DRO), a non-HKAM Fellow
doctor or dentist who wishes to have his/her name included in the
Specialist Register of Medical/Dental Council of Hong Kong must
be certified by the Academy to have training and qualification
comparable/equivalent to that required of an Academy Fellow in
the relevant specialty. A CSR applicant will also be required to
submit evidence of his/her CME/continuing education activities to
the Academy for vetting.

During September 2017 — August 2018, a total of 5 applications
for CSR were successfully certified.

Updates on Accreditation of Training Units, Training Documents,
and CME/CPD Guidelines

During the year, the Committee had endorsed updates submitted
by various Colleges on their training units, training documents, and
CMECPD guidelines.
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Neuroprotective, Analgesic, and Antioxidative Effects
of Melatonin in Surgical Patients: a Double-blinded,
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Risk of second primary tumors in patients with
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Life-Long Burden of Vitamin D Deficiency
Increases Clinical Cardiac Events and Death
Unraveled by An Exome Chip-Derived Multi-Loci
Genetic Risk Score: A Mendelian-Randomized
Study
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The Committee met twice during the year and continued its role
to monitor and review the Academy’s financial status and cash
position. Despite that the overall financial sitation was considered
satisfactory at the moment, the Committee made recommendations
to the Council for long-term financial planning, including the need
for a regular review mechanism on the subscription fee and other
incomes, as well as continual measures in control of expenses.
Such forward planning is important for the Academy to be better
equipped for the continually increasing overheads as well as
anticipated renovation and maintenance works in the coming years.
The Committee would continue its role and make suggestions
proactively to strive for financial sustainability for the Academy.

During the year, the Committee also reviewed the investment
strategies and made suggestions for the adjustments to the
Academy'’s investment portfolio, taking into consideration the cash
flow available for the Academy. The Committee would continue to
adopt a prudent approach on investment.

Facilities

In this year, some touch-up works and minor refurbishment for
the toilets on G/F and 2/F of the Academy were carried out and
completed smoothly in April 2018 as planned. The objective of the
renovation was to provide improved hygiene facilities for partcipants
of conferences, examinations and other activities held in the venues
of G/F and 2/F.

Other maintenance works held in the year included the installation
of fire flashlight with buzz inside all the College offices, repainting

and minor repairs of the main gate for safety and security purposes.

The Academy building has reached over the age of 20. An infrared
test was conducted in September 2017 to review the structural
condition of the Academy’s external walls. Some defects were
noticed. The Academy is going to appoint a consultant to conduct
a more thorough study and prepare for refurbishment works, which
is expected to be carried out in the first and second quarters of
2019.
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Information Technology System

The Academy developed a payment gateway in early 2018 for
Fellows to settle their annual subscriptions via iCMECPD.

To keep abreast of the latest standards of information technology,
the version of Microsoft Windows and Office used by the Secretariat
was upgraded to Microsoft Windows 10 and Office 365. A network
security monitoring tool was also purchased for IT security

improvement.

The Wi-Fi coverage in the Academy’s venues and public areas was
enhanced in late 2017 after the major renovation at the Run Run
Shaw Hall, Pao Yue Kong Auditorium and Lim Por Yen Lecture
Theatre in early 2017. Conference participants and guests can

now enjoy more reliable connection to the internet.

To ensure better technical support for venue users, a hotline was
set up in July 2018. Meanwhile, internet services for Colleges would
be continually upgraded with enhanced firewalls and subscription
of an extra broadband line. Committee members agreed with the
proposal to provide enhanced Wi-Fi services at a reduced rate to
Colleges, as well as lower rates for subscription of HKAM email

accounts and internet services.

Human Resources

The organisational structure of the Secretariat is reviewed regularly
by the Officers and HR Subcommittee to ensure the level of support
and expertise are adequate in helping the Academy achieve its
goals and statutory objectives. Policies and house-rules have also
been updated to fulfill new legislative requirements, improve labour

relations, as well as streamline workflow.

During the third quarter of the year, a “VMV Exercise” that involved
all staff members was conducted, which aimed to look into the
Vision, Mission and Values of the Secretariat. Initiated by the Chief
Executive Officer and facilitated by the Chief Operations Officer, six
common core values were identified for staff to focus on in their daily
work and when faced with challenges: Team Work, Communication,

HKAM Annual Report 2018

ERRRRE
BER2018FH NS E T M MR
# o B ERICMECPDERE & L& X
FE-

ERRE—BTE  WEENERER
Wi WAEBM L KNI Microsoft
Windows F10fficefR AR EFH4kEIMicrosoft
Windows 10F10ffice 365, MRE Y —
BREL2EETH  IRSEMRE
TR o

2017 ERRRAREE « BEHIR
BEMMBNRBEET AR LR
® RETABSEE T HHMMAKM
FTHWIFIBERE  <FR2ME MK
EREZEH2 B AISER B B AR S ©

RYREBERZETFHIMERE BE
R2018F 7RI Y KA EERAR » [F
R BAISEER(CASERERATR
RV A AR - W8 T B AR ZhAE
MERREHEEE - MAEENKRER S
MR B BENWI-F ~ SFEHMAIRS
M L ARFS -

ANER
EENHSENANERNEEZESEHY
WA E EAVABZE  LIERETH
XEMBXRABIHEUBHERER
BRLETEERE ° L9 ZESE
B TR B A BCR N AU BB AR B LU 2 37 5%
ILERRMRESEREFR - LINEL
TERE -

ESFFE=FTE > WEREAMBETE
177 —EBERHEBBAE T VMVE
g, BEERTWEENES £l
BOVMEE - REHRTHEERETHE
BREWET  KIRREET NE
HXRNZOVEE  HFEETHEAREILE



Harmony, Inclusiveness, Integrity and Professionalism. A statement
of the Secretariat’s Values was also developed to promote team
spirit and sense of belonging: “TOGETHER, WE work professionally
in serving the Academy with pride and integrity.”

Member Services

Continuous efforts have been made to enrich services provided to
all Fellows. The monthly Yum Cha is still one of the Academy’s
popular events, with fun-filled activities and workshops organised
for special occasions such as Mother’s Day and Father’s Day. In
2018, a tea and food pairing session and Chinese calligraphy
class were organised. Some special deals for festive products like
Lunar New Year cookies, Mid-Autumn mooncakes and so on, were

exclusively offered to Fellows.

Located on 3/F of the HKAM Jockey Club Building, the Academy
Lounge offers unique meeting spaces and exquisite dining
experiences. Special menus are available, and barbeque buffet is
one of the signature activities. An eblast that covers a range of
member services has been dispatched regularly to Fellows since

January 2018.

Events

Conference and Banquets

The Event Team continued to assist the Academy, its Hong Kong
Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute
(HKJCDPRI) and Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning
Centre for Medicine (HKJC ILCM) as well as Colleges to organise

events or provide secretariat and on-site support to their events.
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Event Date (DD/MM/YY)
WETHM (B /A /)

20/10/2017

06-07/01/2018

13/01/2018

20/01/2018

24/03/2018

07/04/2018

05/05/2018

Social Events

Council and Committees’ Reports

Event Name

5 B 4

Scientific Symposium on Emergency
Medicine 2017
2017 FRAE B RS

Assessment Workshop

BRHEIE R TR

Annual Conference on Disaster
Preparedness and Response 2018
2018 X EEE DR

Career Talk on 2018/19 HA Resident
Training Program

2018/19 Bl BB R B A 535
B

“Transplant Ethics: Looking Forward”
Conference

TBIEME  RERK, €&

Symposium on Healthcare Facilities
Management
BEEXIEEEMSS

4th Medical Education Conference
%EF%&%[ B El [

On the social aspect, the Event Team continues to arrange

the Academy’s Golf Tournament every year. In 2017, the Golf

Tournament was held on 1 November at Hong Kong Golf Club

(Fanling). Dr. Dennis Mak, a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of

Family Physicians, won the HKAM President’s Cup.
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Hong Kong College of Emergency Medicine
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Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
BBREERN S

HKJCDPR
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Hospital Authority and Hong Kong Academy
of Medicine

BREERMAEEBEENER

The University of Chicago Center in Hong
Kong and Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
CINFREEFBROLNEBEEER S

Department of Health and Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine

BEBRDBB2INEL

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and
HKJC ILCM
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Dr. David Fang (right) presents the HKAM President’s
Cup to the winner Dr. Dennis Mak (left)
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To celebrate our Silver Jubilee, the Event Team has organised the
first Intercollegiate Basketball Tournament to promote healthy
lifestyle through sports. A total of 10 teams had competed for
the championship. The tournament was held on every Saturday
afternoon from 30 June to 11 August. The College of Surgeons of

Hong Kong was the Champion.

Last but not the least, the monthly Yum Cha event has started since
2014 and the Academy has served more than 1,000 guests from
September 2017 to August 2018. Yum Cha is one of the monthly
social occasions amongst the Fellows and a distinctive dim sum
place for gathering with family and friends.

Membership Committee

The Academy received 155 nominations for Fellowship from the 15
Colleges between July and December 2017. All nominations were
vetted by the Membership Committee and recommended to the
Council for approval. Those new Fellows were formally admitted at
the Annual General Meeting on 15 December 2017.

From January to June 2018, 122 nominations for Fellowship
were vetted by the Committee and were recommended to the
council for approval. The nominations were formally endorsed at
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 21 June 2018. The
Fellowship will be conferred at the Annual Fellowship Conferment

Ceremony in December.
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The College of Surgeons of Hong Kong is the Champion of the
Intercollegiate Basketball Tournament
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Council and Committees’ Reports

be % & B & & H A & B & WA

Election

Pursuant to section 8(6)(b) of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine

Ordinance, an election has to be conducted for the six Officers of

the Academy Council. The notice and nomination form were sent

to all Council members on 22 June 2018. Six nominations were

received by the deadline of 24 August 2018 and details are listed

below:
Nominee
fe 3 N\

Prof. C.S. Lau
ZEERUR

Dr. C.C. Lau
Edlpealf=s

Prof. Gilberto Leung
PEEHIR

Prof. Henry Chan
BRA TR

Dr. Y.F. Chow
IEIEE:

Prof. Martin Wong
BEEEHIF

Prof. Henry Chan

Honorary Secretary
September 2018
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Vice-President (Education and Examinations)

BER (HBREAFHE)

Honorary Secretary
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Honorary Treasurer
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Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Press
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The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Press (HKAM Press) was
established in October 2002. As an integral part of the Academy, the
HKAM Press publishes medical journals, newsletters, monographs,

and congress packages for various Colleges and societies.

Publications

The HKAM Press currently publishes six periodical journals: the
Asian Journal of Gerontology & Geriatrics; the East Asian Archives
of Psychiatry; the Hong Kong Journal of Gynaecology, Obstetrics
and Midwifery, the Hong Kong Journal of Radiology; the Hong Kong
Journal of Ophthalmology; and the Hong Kong Medical Journal, as
well as two newsletters: Academy FOCUS and Eye Opener.

In the past year, the HKAM Press has also published two
monographs. Thefirst, The Hong Kong Geriatrics Society Curriculum
in Geriatric Medicine, Z2nd edition, is an up-to-date comprehensive
compendium of common medical problems faced by older patients
in Hong Kong. This has an accompanying Learning Manual for use
in geriatric and gerontology studies. The second is The Hong Kong
College of Otorhinolaryngologists: The Formative Years, which is an
in-depth account of the development and history of ear, nose, and

throat medicine in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Medical Journal (HKM)J)

It has been another busy and productive year for the HKM.J, with
the key highlights summarised below.

Circulation

As of 31 August 2018, around 700 Academy Fellows receive the
print copy of HKM.J. Together with about 640 members of the Hong
Kong Medical Association and other individuals who subscribe to
the printed edition, the total circulation is around 1,400.
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Online access

All Fellows are enrolled in the e-Alert service (unless they have
opted out) and receive an email with the table of contents when
each new issue is available online. In the past year, the HKMJ

website has enjoyed an average of 16,800 visitors each month.

Editorial Board
The Editorial Board of the HKM.J currently has 8 Senior Editors and

48 Editors. Each Senior Editor is responsible for coordinating one of
the various sections of the Journal. The Editors nominate reviewers
and make recommendations regarding the papers submitted.
Under the leadership of the Editor-in-Chief, the Editorial Board
establishes and defines the policies of the Journal; makes editorial
decisions; and formulates clear guidelines for authors, reviewers,
and the editorial office to ensure smooth operation of the Journal.
The Editorial Board members are committed to enhance the quality
and relevance of the Journal by expediting articles on current hot
topics and applying rigorous methodological review of submitted
articles.

The Editorial Board would like to extend its deepest gratitude to
Prof. Ignatius Yu, outgoing Executive Editor (part-time), in April
this year. Prof. Yu also served as the Editor-in-Chief of HKM.J from
2011 to 2016. The Editorial Board warmly thanks him for providing
professional input to ensure that the methodology and statistical
analysis in each published article was reported and interpreted

appropriately, and wishes him all the best.

Impact Factor

The HKAM Press is proud that the impact factor for the HKMJ
has again increased, to 1.226, according to the 2017 Journal
Citation Reports released by Clarivate Analytics. Appreciation goes
to all Editorial Board members, authors, and reviewers for their

unwavering support.
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Timeliness of Publication in HKMJ

The Editorial Board is aware of the importance of timely publication
of all types of articles submitted by our authors. The average time
from submission of articles to first decision for 2018 is around 15
days, a significant improvement over the average of over 20 days
for 2017.
a high-quality and efficient peer-review system for all types of

It is the commitment of the Editorial Board to maintain

submissions.

International Publishing Standards

Quality, transparency, and adherence to standards continue to
increase at the HKM.J. In line with international recommendations
from organisations such as ICMJE (http://www.icmje.org/) and
COPE (https://publicationethics.org/), authors are now expected
to show clearly that their research was conducted ethically and
honestly. Authors who submit articles to the Journal are required
to follow the EQUATOR network guidelines relevant to their article
type (accessible at http://www.equator-network.org). In addition,
statements are included in every manuscript to show that the study
was conducted in accordance with ethics standards, and to clarify
any competing interests that the authors might have that could
affect the integrity of the report.

Hkavied T

HKAMedTrack System

The HKAM web-based manuscript tracking system (HKAMedTrack),
launched in late 2016, offers a complete online submission and
peer review system. The HKAMedTrack system has allowed greater
efficiency and faster turnaround times for the editorial team. The
“time to first decision” between when a manuscript is first submitted
and the journal issuing a decision on whether to accept or reject the
paper is an important metric for any journal, and the HKAMedTrack
system helped improve the time to reach the first decision of new
submissions by over 40% on average. In the past year, about
480 manuscripts have been submitted to the HKM.J through the
HKAMedTrack system, and feedback from authors, reviewers, and
editors has been very positive. In June 2018, a second journal, the
Hong Kong Journal of Radiology, signed up to use the system.
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Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute

A o 2 1S o K B B o A 20t b O

Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response
Institute (HKJCDPRI) was set up in 2014 to strengthen Hong
Kong's preparedness and capabilities for handling disasters or
major emergencies. Led by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
in collaboration of The University of Hong Kong (HKU) and The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK), and supported by
international experts, HKJCDPRI aims at training a cadre of
healthcare professionals, NGO practitioners, teachers and the public
over the b5-year project period with a view not only to promoting
community resilience in Hong Kong, but also establishing the city
as a regional hub for disaster preparedness and response training
through capacity-building and knowledge development.

Providers and Leadership Courses

The HKJCDPRI develops capacity building programmes for care
providers to enhance their knowledge and skills required for
disaster response. HKJCDPRI's leadership development courses
highlight the importance of critical decision making and effective
communication and coordination skills for emergency operations.
The HKJCDPRI utilises different teaching modalities including
online learning, Virtual Reality (VR) simulation, table-top exercises
and case sharing for blended learning. The followings are highlights
of HKJCDPRI’s Providers and Leadership Development Courses:
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Mass Causalty Incident Simulation Training for the Ambulance
Command of Fire Services Department

Effective command and coordination of resources is essential
to mass casualty incident responses. With use of the innovative
simulation software of the HKJCDPRI, various high-fidelity Virtual
Reality (VR) disaster scenarios using the environment of Hong Kong
were created for mass causalty incident command and coordination
training. Virtual responder characters will be programmed to act
and respond to conditions set forth by the situational controls. Such
localised simulated disaster scenarios offer practical and realistic
simulation experience for training participants.
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Participants use the innovative simulation software in the mass causalty incident command and

coordination training
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Hazardous Materials (HazMat) Simulation Training for
Fire Services Department

The HKJCDPRI supported the HazMat Team of the Fire Services
Department in enhancing learning outcomes of their HazMat
response training. Various VR simulated HazMat incident scenarios
were created for HazMat Team members to exercise operational
tactics and strategics in a virtual environment before practising on
ground.
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Participation in Exercise Centum, a Simulated Mass Casualty
Incident in Perth

International learning and exchange offers opportunities for
participants to gain practical insights and inspiration. On 16-17
May 2018, the HKJCDPRI led a 6-people Hong Kong delegation
to observe and participate in the emergency exercise, Exercise
Centum, conducted by the Western Australian Department of Health
Disaster Preparedness and Management Unit and Emergency
Operations Centre of eight metropolitan hospitals. The simulated
terror attack was conducted as a functional exercise with the aim
of enhancing emergency preparedness and joint response during
a crisis. The Hong Kong delegation consisted of experts from the
Ambulance Service Institute (Hong Kong branch), Hong Kong
College of Emergency Medicine, Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
and the HKJCDPRI. The delegation participated in the functional
exercise using the Emergo Train System (ETS) which is a validated

simulation system used in over 35 countries.
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(From left) Dr. C.B. Lo, Hong Kong College of Emergency Medicine;
Dr. C.W. Chau, Hong Kong St. John Ambulance; Mr. Alex Wong,
Ambulance Service Institute (Hong Kong Branch); Mr. John Heslop,
Exercise Director; Ms. Angel Ng, Senior Manager of HKJCDPRI; Ms.
Eva Lam, Director of HKJCDPRI and Ms. Tiffany Yeung, Manager
(Professional Development) of HKJCDPRI
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An emergency exercise, Exercise Centum,

conducted by the Disaster Planning and
Management Unit of the Department of Health,
Western Australia
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Fundamental and Advanced Disaster Response Courses

Partnering with the Hong Kong College of Emergency Medicine,
the Fundamental Disaster Response Course covered core skills
and a competency checklist for disaster management, and will be
delivered via lectures, discussions, demonstrations and experience
sharing. The Advanced Disaster Response Course was designed
to develop the knowledge and skills of administrative and medical
personnel to prepare health care facilities to respond effectively, to
ensure continuous operations during or even after disasters, and to
recover for better from the impacts of disasters.
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The Fundemantal Disaster Response Course is delivered in a mixture of

lectures and interactive discussions
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Senior Leadership Programme - Training Workshop on
Disaster Management

In collaboration with the Hong Kong College of Community Medicine,
the Senior Leaderhip Programme - Training Workshop on Disaster
Management was conducted for the seventh time. The training
comprised an introduction of the theories of disaster management,
including effective leadership during disaster management. The
use of social media during crisis, its benefits and disadvantages,
such as engaging public sentiments, were also discussed during
the training. The highlight of the training included a session on
effective crisis communication, where participants had to simulate
a press conference for a crisis response, which were video-taped,

for analysis and critique.
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Working with Universities in Disaster Education

In the sector of university education, the HKJCDPRI continued
to work with HKU and CUHK to develop and launch disaster
modules on disaster topics under their Master of Public Health
(MPH) programmes. This year, seven modules, namely Infectious
Outbreaks and Diseases, Public Health Course in Emergency
Medicine for Disaster and Humanitarian Crises Responders,
Disaster and Humanitarian Crisis, Research Methodology for
Disaster and Medical Humanitarian Response, Food Security:
Local and Global Perspectives, Emergency Risk Communication in
Disaster and Humanitarian Crisis, and Global Health Perspective
of Humanitarian Crisis & Human Security, had been provided for
both occasional students and MPH students. The HKJCDPRI also
continued to work with the two universities in developing e-learning

modules. This year, two new e-learning modules were launched.
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Community Engagement

The HKJCDPRI collaborates with different organisations and
schools on “Community Campaign on Disaster Resilience” to
deliver public awareness and education campaigns, tailored to
the specific potential hazards the community is facing. In the
year 2017/18, the HKJCDPRI launched the second “Community
Campaign on Disaster Resilience” under the theme “Resilience is
for Life” and successfully engaged five community partners, namely
Jane Goodall Institute, Hong Kong Red Cross, CCC Fung Leung
Kit Memorial Secondary School, Amity Mutual Support Society and
HKSKH Maclehose Centre, in the campaign.
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The HKJCDPRI works with universities in
developing e-learning modules
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Supported by the Hong Kong Observatory, the HKJCDPRI launched
the micro-film competition with the theme “Prepare Disasters
as Part of our Daily Lives”. The award ceremony was held on
17 September 2017 to mark the closing of the competition. Around
1,000 participants attended the event. Awards were presented
to the 6 winning teams at the ceremony by our officiating guests
representing funding and supporting organisations. The award
ceremony was supported by the Hong Kong Observatory, the Civil
Engineering and Development Department, the Link and Civil Aid
Service.
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The award ceremony for the micro-film competition with the theme “Prepare Disasters as Part of our Daily

Lives” was held on 17 September 2017
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Supporting the WHO Global Emergency
Medical Teams Initiative

The HKJCDPRI continued to work with the University of Manchester
WHO Collaborating Centre for Emergency Medical Teams (EMT)
and Emergency Capacity Building to support WHO’s work in
promoting minimum standards of EMTs and building capacities of
national EMTs to meet the requirements. With the support of the
HKJCDPRI, the West China Hospital of Sichuan University received
the coaching programme and pre-deployment training during
February to April 2018 for preparation of the verification visit by
the WHO Delegation in May 2018. The verification visit by WHO
took place at the verification meeting in the Institute for Disaster

Management and Reconstruction in Chengdu, Sichuan province,
on 4-5 May 2018 and the Sichuan EMT successfully passed the
verification to become the first civilian Type 3 EMT on the WHO list.
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Manchester and Sichuan Emergency Medical
Team members enjoy the fruitful training

AR HCRTE L 0 S AU R R B2 1 B AR A LA K
V01 A K 5 Ll 20K



Research Studies

The HKJCDPRI and working partners collaborate in conducting
disaster preparedness related research and initiating policy
discussion. Research and policy brief papers have been produced
for multi-sectoral stakeholders to discuss global issues of disaster risk
reduction, local and regional preparedness, community resilience,
and also to develop, implement and evaluate related policies. This
year, two policy brief papers were produced. The policy brief “Policy
Implications for Managing Disasters for Better Protection with
Non-communicable Diseases in Hong Kong” discusses disaster-
related health risks associated with people who have underlying
non-communicable diseases in Asian urban communities. The
second policy brief “Improving Urban Health System Disaster
Preparedness and Response in Hong Kong” discusses various
Hospital Preparedness Plans and National Disaster Management
Plans, explores changes in plans following recent disasters, and

recommends key areas that such plans should cover.

Early warning system is one of the most effective measures for
disaster risk reduction. The HKJCDPRI worked with the Department
of Civil and Environmental Engineering of The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology (HKUST) on a research “Smart Landside
Information System”. The research aims to develop a new smart
Landslide Information System (LIS) that can improve the planning
of access and evacuation routes for emergency responders during
intense rainstorms and provide real-time landslide information
to the public through a hazard map incorporated into the LIS
mobile Apps. This research has demonstrated that innovative

smart technology can provide early landslide warning and reduce

disaster risk.
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Visit to the HKUST large-scale debris flow flume facility
between HKUST and the HKJCDPRI

(From 3rd left, front row) Mr. Roger Cheung, former
Assistant Director of HKJCDPRI; Ms. Tiffany Yeung,
Manager (Professional Development) of HKJCDPRI;

Ms. Eva Lam, Director of HKJCDPRI; Dr. Y.F. Chow,
Executive Committee member of HKJCDPRI; and

Dr. Clarence Choi, Principal Investigator of the research
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Annual Conference on Disaster Preparedness
and Response 2018

The HKJCDPRI held its signature event, the Annual Conference
on Disaster Preparedness and Response, on 13 January 2018.
The Conference with the theme “Emerging Challenges and
Opportunities Ahead” was the third time of the series since 2015.
It served as a crucial platform for key stakeholders and the general
public to exchange knowledge and lessons, as well as to enhance
communication and coordination, in order to prepare Hong Kong
better for future disasters. Supporting organisations of the Conferene
included the Ambulance Service Institute (HK Branch), CCOUC
of CUHK, Hong Kong Association of Conflict and Catastrophe
Medicine, Hong Kong College of Community Medicine, Hong Kong
College of Emergency Medicine, Hong Kong Disaster Medicine
Association, Hong Kong Emergency Nurses Association, Hong
Kong Red Cross, Hong Kong Society of Emergency Medicine and
Surgery, Hong Kong St. John Ambulance and Li Ka Shing Faculty
of Medicine of HKU. The event attracted over 400 participants.
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The third Annual Conference on Disaster Preparedness and Response attracts over 400 participants
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New Website, Facebook Page and E-learning
Platform of HKJCDPRI

The HKJCDPRI launched its newly designed website, facebook
page and e-learning platform this year. The new website contains
a range of new features including a Resources Centre that provides
the audience with a walk through of HKJCDPRI's disaster-related
information and theme-based learning resources. The HKJCDPRI
Facebook page offers a new channel for HKJCDPRI to engage and
connect with audience more easily.
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The HKJCDPRI engages and connects with audience through different channels
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Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine
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Innovative Learning Centre
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine
(HKJC ILCM) was inaugurated in December 2013 to promote
innovative learning and research in healthcare professionals to
deliver safe and quality patient care. One of the major roles of
HKJC ILCM is faculty development for medical simulation as a

learning tool.

Over the 12 months between September 2017 and August 2018,
the HKJC ILCM organised and hosted more than 52 training
programmes and activities, some in collaboration with various
partners such as Colleges of HKAM, The University of Hong
Kong, Hospital Authority and Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster
Preparedness and Response Institute. Our courses targeted
Fellows, trainees, nurses, medical students, allied healthcare and

paramedical professionals.

Faculty Development Training Programmes
Comprehensive Simulation Educator Course

The HKJC ILCM’s Comprehensive Simulation Educator Course
(CSEC) is our key faculty development programme and was
conducted in November 2017 and May and August 2018.
Designed for healthcare specialists with an interest in using medical
simulation as a teaching tool, CSEC provided participants with an
understanding of the basic concepts of learner-centred education
and essential learners’

knowledge to develop competence

in  planning simulation-based learning activities, scenario
development, direction, execution and debriefing methods. CSEC
was developed and conducted by local faculty in collaboration with
Center for Medical Simulation (CMS) of the Harvard University in
Boston. Favourable reviews and feedbacks were received from
CMS and the learners. The HKJC ILCM shall continue to run CSEC

on a regular basis.
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HKJC ILCM conducts the Comprehensive Simulation Educator Course
RLIERE Bl vh O SRR B 2 1 A AR

Debriefing Skills for Simulation Instructors Course

This newly developed Debriefing Skills for Simulation Instructors
Course (DSSI) aims to provide the essential knowledge and skills
to develop learners’ competence in debriefing methods commonly
used in simulation training courses. This 2-day course is designed
and suitable for healthcare professionals who wish to learn more
about simulation-based learning and to apply the techniques of

debriefing and feedback as a tool in teaching adult learners.
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The first DSSI course was organised in July 2018
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HKAM-CMS Visiting Scholar Programme

CMS Visiting Scholar Programme is a collaborative project between
HKAM and CMS to promote expertise in patient safety, and
education and research in medical simulation in Hong Kong and
China. Fellows of HKAM and other healthcare professionals who
have graduated from the Institute for Medical Simulation (IMS)
instructor courses or CSEC are eligible to apply for this programme.
Successful candidates are offered a scholarship to attend the
2-month Programme in Boston. The Programme remains well
subscribed with the support from our partners since the launch.
The HKJC ILCM will continue to invite applicants for this scholarship

twice a year.

Debriefing Assessment for Simulation in Healthcare (DASH)
Rater Training Workshop

CMS offers an online training workshop named Debriefing
Assessment for Simulation in Healthcare (DASH) Rater Training
Workshop for experienced simulation educators who are interested

in learning how to rigorously assess the quality of debriefing.

The HKJC ILCM have fully sponsored a few quotas for Fellows of
HKAM and other healthcare professionals who have graduated
from the IMS instructor courses or CSEC to join the DASH Rater
Training Workshop. Two alumni have completed the DASH Rater
Training Workshop this year.
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Simulation Alliance Scientific Meeting

Hong Kong Simulation Alliance is a group with a collective aim to
promote the use of simulation as a tool for learning and assessment
amongst healthcare professionals and students with an ultimate
objective to improve patient care and safety. It consists of HKAM,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Department of Health of
the HKSAR Government, Hong Kong Society for Simulation in
Healthcare, The Hong Kong Private Hospital Association, The
University of Hong Kong and Hospital Authority.

The Meeting aims to provide a platform for members of Hong Kong
Simulation Alliance to share their views and experience in using
simulation. In December 2017, a thematic meeting “Enhancing
Realism in Surgery Simulation” was held at HKJC ILCM to
introduce the advanced and newly invented equipment and tools
to be applied in surgery simulation which has brought in new ideas
in designing concerned simulation training and the innovative way

in enhancing realism.
The HKJC ILCM Initiatives

The HKJC ILCM has launched a service to loan some of our training
equipment as well as human patient simulators and other training
simulators to the Colleges of HKAM for training and examination
conducted within the HKAM Building. Other initiatives including a
library of reference materials and books on medical simulation and
medical education are also made available to all Fellows.

Internship Programme

The Internship Programme is an initiative in collaboration with
the Department of Biomedical Engineering of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (PolyU) as well as Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of the University of Hong Kong (HKU). The internship
programme aims to provide students with an exposure to the
scope and experience in the application of innovative technology in
multidisciplinary healthcare education and to understand more on

medical simulation education.
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Two interns from PolyU attended the Programme for about 11 weeks
from late May to early August 2018 while the other two interns from
HKU came to HKJC ILCM in May and June 2018 respectively with
each for a 4-week attachment. They all participated in structural
learning sessions to equip themselves with knowledge and skills of
handling clinical equipment and facilities, technical support and
project management in the field of simulated medical education.

These four interns from both universities contributed to HKJC
ILCM by taking part in supporting courses in different roles and

performed remarkably well.

HKAM-CMS Alliance Member Center
Agreement

The HKAM and CMS have developed the partnership since 2013 to
build up international network and enrich professional development
in the domain of medical simulation. The two parties extended the
agreement to continue the collaboration in June 2018. The HKAM

is designated as an Alliance Member of the CMS.
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The agreement is signed by Dr. P. P. Chen, Honorary Director of the HKJC ILCM (right, front

row) and Dr. Robert Simon of CMS (left, front row); witnessed by Prof.
Academy (2nd right, back row)
right, back row), and CMS Fac ull\ members
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Honorary Treasurer’s Report
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Honorary Treasurer’s Report
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A consolidated deficit of $17.7M was recorded for the year. The key
factors leading to the deficit included the increased depreciation
expenses incurred from the establishment of Innovative Learning
Centre for Medicine and Disaster Preparedness and Response
Institute previously, as well as those incurred from the purchase
of new assets associated with a number of renovation works taken
place in the recent few years, including the major ones for the Run
Run Shaw Hall, Pao Yue Kong Auditorium and Lim Por Yen Lecture
Theatre, which were completed in 2017. The Council and its
Finance and Investment Committee would continue to review and
impose appropriate measures to ensure the financial sustainability
for the Academy.

At the time of writing the report, the Academy and Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine Foundation Fund held a total of cash or its
equivalents around $88M.

On behalf of the Academy, | would like to thank the members of
the Finance and Investment Committee for their time and effort in
helping the Academy keep a healthy and sustainable position in its
finance.

Dr. Y.F. Chow

Honorary Treasurer
September 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF
HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

FAERBENSER
(Established in Hong Kong)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (“the Academy”) and its
structured entity, The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Foundation Fund (collectively “the Group”) set out
on pages 4 to 34, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the consolidated statement of income and expenditure, the consolidated statement of income and
expenditure and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in reserve and
funds and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The council members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

T BRI RHRRE 201845 05




Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF
HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

EEREER SR
(Established in Hong Kong)

(Continued)

Responsibilities of the council members for the consolidated financial statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and section 14 of Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine Ordinance, and for such internal control as the council members determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 14 of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the council members.
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Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF
HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

FANBER SR

(Established in Hong Kong)

(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the council members’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the council members regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Crowe CHK CPA Limifed.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 July 2018

Poon Cheuk Ngai
Practising Certificate Number PO6711

HCH1010-2017
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

AR EERSG

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017 2016

HK$ HK$

Principal source of revenue 4 25,449,025 25,831,625

Other revenue and other net gain/(loss) 5 40,488,789 50,967,579

Depreciation 8 (21,415,554) (17,521,161)

Salaries, wages and other benefits (20,963,312) (22,383,280)
Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans (1,275,329) (1,480,232)

Other operating expenses (40,003,772) (46,719,734)

Deficit for the year 6 (17,720,153) (11,305,203)

The notes on pages 9 to 34 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

FARBERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017
HK$
Deficit for the year (17,720,153)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of nil
income tax
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income and expenditure
Available-for-sale securities:
- changes in fair value 11,059,337
- reclassification adjustment on disposal 316,032
11,375,369
Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,344,784)

The notes on pages 9 to 34 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2016
HK$

(11,305,203)

(722,602)
3,481,958

2,759,356

(8,545,847)
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EARZENER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017 2016
HK$ HK$
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 71,480,710 57,004,374
Construction in progress 8 - -
Available-for-sale securities 10 57,598,378 55,432,225
129,079,088 112,436,599
Current assets
Inventories — general merchandise 216,278 245,180
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables 11 9,730,546 6,751,210
Cash and cash equivalents 12 22,866,279 52,460,731
32,813,103 59,457,121
Current liabilities
Receipts in advance 10,830 12,641
Accruals and other payables 13 6,678,693 10,333,627
(6,689,523) (10,346,268)
Net current assets 26,123,580 49,110,853
Net assets 155,202,668 161,547,452
Reserve and funds 14
Fair value reserve 11,444,933 69,564
Foundation fund 37,936,231 37,936,231
General fund 105,821,504 123,541,657
155,202,668 161,547,452

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 19 July 2018.

On behalf of the Council

~

[
k;-*4(\%

Prof. Lau Chak-sing
President

S

Dr. Chow Yu-fat
Honorary Treasurer

The notes on pages 9 to 34 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

FARBEEREG

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVE AND FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

At 1 January 2016
Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale securities:
Changes in fair value
Reclassification adjustment for
disposal

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale securities:
Change in fair value
Reclassification adjustment for
disposal

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

At 31 December 2017

Fair value Foundation General
reserve fund fund Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(2,689,792) 37,936,231 134,846,860 170,093,299
- - (11,305,203) (11,305,203)
(722,602) - - (722,602)
3,481,958 - - 3,481,958
2,759,356 - (11,305,203) (8,545,847)
69,564 37,936,231 123,541,657 161,547,452
- - (17,720,153) (17,720,153)
11,059,337 - - 11,059,337
316,032 - - 316,032
11,375,369 - (17,720,153) (6,344,784)
11,444,933 37,936,231 105,821,504 155,202,668

The notes on pages 9 to 34 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EAREEN S5

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017 2016
HK$ HK$
Operating activities
Deficit for the year (17,720,153) (11,305,203)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 21,415,554 17,521,161
Interest income (106,333) (161,606)
Dividend income from available-for-sale
securities (3,971,300) (3,977,750)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 865,487 -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale
securities (619,088) 4,435,179
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in
working capital (135,833) 6,511,781
Decrease in inventories 28,902 5,435
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, deposits and
prepayments (2,979,337) 907,925
Decrease in receipts in advance (1,812) (82,883)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accrued
charges (4,789,738) 2,760,794
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities (7,877,818) 10,103,052
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (35,622,572) (12,457,658)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
securities 11,761,207 8,015,232
Interest received 106,333 161,606
Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 2,038,398 2,277,120
Net cash used in investing activities (21,716,634) (2,003,700)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (29,594,452) 8,099,352
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 52,460,731 44,361,379
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 22,866,279 52,460,731

The notes on pages 9 to 34 form part of these financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
AR EG

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1. STATUS OF THE ACADEMY

The Academy was established as a body corporate under the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine Ordinance on 1 August 1992. The principal activities of the Academy are to promote
and advance the science of medicine by education and exchange of information as well as to
improve the standard of local health care. The Academy has its registered office and principal
place of business at 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Academy and its structured entity (together referred to as the Group”) is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

b)  Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprise
the Academy and The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Foundation Fund which is a
structured entity of the Academy.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale securities (see note 2(h));

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EARBHNRE5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b)  Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 18.

c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Academy and structured entity controlled by the Academy. Control is achieved when
the Academy:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee:
and
+  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has
power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;
potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;

+  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

+ any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous members’
meetings.

Consolidation of a structured entity begins when the Group obtains control over the
structured entity and ceases when the Group loses control of the structured entity.
Specifically, income and expenses of a structured entity acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the structured
entity.

10
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FAREEREL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
c) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of structured entity
to bring its accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

d)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset'’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings classified as held under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the buildings or the unexpired term of the land lease
using the straight line method.

Leasehold land and building 25 years
Computer equipment . 5 years
Furnitures and fixtures 5 years
Training & office equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the income and expenditure account
on the date of retirement or disposal.

1
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FERPEREE5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
d)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress include property, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’'s accounting
policy. Such properties, plant and equipment are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

e) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a
lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i)  Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by group under leases which transfer to the group
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

i)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

12
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
e) Leased assets (Continued)

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

f) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

g) Impairment of assets
i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

Investments in equity securities and receivables that are carried at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

13
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FEARPENREER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

- For trade and other receivables, impairment loss is determined and
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been
recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

14

78 HKAM Annual Report 2018




HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the cash-generating unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use, (if
determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EARBHRRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
iy Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversal of impairment losses (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

h)  Available-for-sale securities

The group’s and the Academy’s policies for investments in equity securities, other than
investments in structured entity, are as follows:

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-sale securities
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Dividend income from
equity securities are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out
in notes 2(n). Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of fair
value reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(g)(i)), the cumulative
gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised / derecognised on the date the group commits to purchase / sell the
investments or they expire.

i) Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

)] Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FHRBERRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at a acquisition.

1) Funds managed by the Group
iy  Foundation fund

Funds received which is used exclusively for the establishment and use of the
Academy at such time as the Academy shall direct are accounted for as
Foundation fund.

i) General fund

The fund balance represents the accumulated surplus of the Foundation after
deducting the amounts transferred to the Academy and is used to finance the
general operations of the Group.

m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

n)  Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
income and expenditure account as follows:
i)  Provision of services

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the services are rendered.

i)  Entrance fees and subscription fees

Entrance fees are recognised when the cash is received. Subscription fees are
recognised on an accrual basis.

17

U AIRLAR 2018F WY O1




82

HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
n) Revenue recognition (Continued)
iy Donations, grants and contributions

Donations, grants and contributions are recognised when the Group is reasonably
assured that such amount will be received.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in the income and expenditure account on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.

iv) Income from international congress and various functions

Income from international congress and various functions is recognised on an
accrual basis.

v) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
vi) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

0) Related parties

a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Academy if
that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Academy;
i)  has significant influence over the Academy; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Academy or the
Academy’s parent.

b) An entity is related to the Academy if any of the following conditions applies:

i)  The entity and the Academy are members of the same Academy (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

18

HKAM Annual Report 2018



HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EAREAREL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
o) Related parties (Continued)

b) An entity is related to the Academy if any of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the company or an entity related to the Academy.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

p) Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are charged to the income and
expenditure account.

i)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a

result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The functional and presentation currency of the Academy is Hong Kong dollars.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the group. None of these impact on the accounting policies of the group.

The group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
4, PRINCIPAL SOURCE OF REVENUE

This represents the entrance fees and subscription fees received from fellows and members,
and is analysed as follows:

2017 2016

HK$ HK$

Entrance fees 4,900,000 5,820,000
Subscription fees 20,549,025 20,011,625
25,449,025 25,831,625
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS)

2017 2016
HK$ HK$
Other revenue

Advertising fee 245,048 225,950
Income from specialist certification 339,300 354,980
Income from various functions 10,381,555 11,391,921
Bank interest income * 106,333 161,606
Rental income 3,602,176 3,234,076
Subscriptions - journal 2,452,983 2,968,857
Sponsorship income - 20,000
Training registration fee 1,281,300 582,000

Donation income from
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 16,673,461 26,305,209
Others 1,004,045 1,673,444
36,086,201 46,918,043

Other net gain/(loss)

Dividend income from available-for-sale securities 3,971,300 3,977,750
Exchange (loss)/gain (187,800) 71,786
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities 619,088 -
4,402,588 4,049,536
40,488,789 50,967,579

*

The bank interest income was not generated from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

6. DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

Deficit for the year is arrived at after charging:

2017 2016
HK$ HK$
a) Staff costs
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plant 755,071 820,837
Salaries, wages and other benefits 20,208,241 21,562,443
20,963,312 22,383,280
b) Other items
Auditor's remuneration 163,600 148,000
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 865,487 -
Depreciation 21,415,554 17,521,161
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) 187,800 (71,786)
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

7. TAXATION

No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group is exempted from
taxation under the provision of section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fumiture Training & Leasehold Construction
Computer and office Leasehold land and in
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Cost
At 1 January 2016 3791722 10288302 31,890,764 41490968 3,335,832 90,807 588 12,676,824 103,484,412
Additions 836,867 1,656,182 4,979,507 4,985,012 - 12,457,658 - 12,457,658
Disposals (342,650)  (1,233,894) (766,992) (2,323,830) - (4,667,366) - (4.667,366)
Transfers - _ 5344004 . 7,332,820 . 12,676,824 _ (12,676,824) -
At 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017 4285939 16,064,584 96,103,369 51484970 3335832 111,274,704 - 111,274,704
Additions 547,504 365,408 203,840 1,147,850 - 2,264,602 34,492,775 36,757,377
Disposals (773.185) (812,336)  (2,379,120) (5,430,490) - (8,295,131) - (9,395,131)
Transfers - = = 34,492,775 - 34,492,775 34.492,775) -
Al 31 Dacember 2017 4080258 _15617.666 33,928,089 81695105 _ 3335832 _ 138,636.950 - 138,636,950
Accumulated depreciation
At January 2016 1741274 5018090 16,904,936 16.417,904 1,334,331 41,416,535 - 41416535
Charge for the year 620,753 2,788,537 5,574,896 8,394,542 133,433 17,521,161 . 17,521,161
Write back on disposals (342,650) _ (1.233,804) (766.992) (2,323,830) - (4,657.366) - (4.667,386)
At 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017 2028377 6572733 21,712,840 22488616 1,467,764 54,270,330 - 54,270,330
Charge for the year 748,145 2908025 5,664,809 11,961,052 133,433 21,415,554 - 21,415.554
Wiite back on disposal (773,185) __ (812,336) _(2,379,120)  _ (4,565,003 - (8.529,644) - (8.529.644)
At 31 December 2017 2,003,337 _ B,668.422 24,998,619 20884665 _ 1,601,197 67,156,240 . 67,156,240
Carrying amount
AL21 December 2017 2086921 _ 6043244 _ 8,929,470 51810440 1734635 71480710 - 71480710
At 31 December 2016 2,257,562 8,491,861 14,390,529 28996354 1,868,068 57,004,374 - 57,004,374

The Academy entered into an agreement with the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government for grant by Private Treaty of Aberdeen Inland Lot No. 414 for a term of 50 years
less 3 days with effect from 1 July 1997 and on which the headquarters of the Academy were
built. The Academy is required to pay an amount equal to 3% of the rateable value per annum,
which has been charged to the income and expenditure account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

10.

11.

INTEREST IN A SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY

Details of the special purpose entity are as follows:

Place of
Form of incorporation
Name of the special business and Principal
purpose entity structure operation activity
The Hong Kong Incorporated Hong Kong  Fund raising and
Academy of Medicine investment
Foundation Fund management
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
2017
HK$
Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 57,598,378
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2017
HK$
Bank interest receivables 10,442
Deposits 106,603
Deposit paid to building management company 900,000
Function fee receivable 1,688,215
Prepaid expenses 1,796,665
Receivable from associations & government authorities 5,228,621
9,730,546

Proportion of
ownership
interest
held by

Academy
100%

2016
HK$

55,432,225

2016
HK$

8,687
56,603
700,000
696,327
1,979,386

3,310,207
6,751,210

Except for deposits of HK$1,006,603 (2016: HK$756,603), all of the prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 17(a).

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are the following amounts denominated in a

currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

2017
Australian Dollars -
United States Dollars 41,298
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017 2016
HK$ HKS$

Bank deposits with original maturity of
three months or less 13,467,536 13,342,733
Cash at bank and on hand 9,398,743 39,117,998
22,866,279 52,460,731

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following amounts denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

2017 2016
United States Dollars 462,646 457,748
Renminbi 199,592 3,704,446
13. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 2016
HK$ HK$

Accrued expenses payable to building management
company (1,186,523) (1,018,017)
Other accrued expenses (3,950,723) (9,315,610)
Payable for acquisition of leasehold improvement (1,134,805) -
Salary payables (406,642) -

(6,678,693) (10,333,627)

All accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one year or are repayable
on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

14. RESERVE AND FUNDS

a)

Movements in components of reserve and funds

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated reserve and funds is set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in reserve and funds. Details of the changes in the Academy’s individual
components of reserve and funds between the beginning and the end of the year are

set out below:

The Academy

At 1 January 2016

Deficit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale securities:
Changes in fair value
Reclassification adjustment on
disposal

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Deficit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale securities:
Changes in fair value
Reclassification adjustment on
disposal

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Transfer from Hong Kong Academy
of Medicine Foundation Fund

At 31 December 2017

Fair value General

reserve fund Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
(2,689,792) 142,344,257 139,654,465
- (11,519,419) (11,519,419)
(722,602) - (722,602)
3,481,958 - 3,481,958
2,759,356 (11,519,419) (8,760,063)
69,564 130,824,838 130,894,402
- (17,839,946) (17,839,946)
11,059,337 - 11,059,337
316,032 - 316,032
11,375,369 (17,839,946) (6,464,577)
- 16,500,000 16,500,000
11,444,933 129,484,892 140,929,825

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale securities held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy in note 2(h). Funds received are accounted for in
the Foundation fund which is used exclusively for the establishment and use of the
Academy at such time as the Academy shall direct. General fund represents the

cumulative surplus of the Academy.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

15. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group defined all components of reserve and funds as “capital”. On this basis, the
amount of capital employed at 31 December 2017 was HK$155,202,668 (2016:
HK$161,547,452).

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed. Adjustments are made to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Group, to the
extent that these do not conflict with the Council’s fiduciary duties towards the Group or the
requirements of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance.

The Group was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in either the current or
prior year.

16. COMMITMENTS

a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

2017 2016
HK$ HK$
Contracted for - 35,777,915

b) Lease commitment
The Academy as lessor

The Academy's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as follows:

2017 2016

HK$ HK$

Within 1 year 378,000 486,000
After 1 year but within 5 years 67,500 445,500
445,500 931,500

The Academy leases out certain areas of its headquarter under operating leases. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale securities, receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and payables. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risk associated with these financial instruments include credit risk,
liquidity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

a)  Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to receivables available-for-sale
securities and cash deposits. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

i)  In respect of the receivables, in order to minimize risk, the management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its debtor’s financial position and condition is
performed on each and every major debtor periodically. These evaluations focus
on the debtor’s past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the debtor. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial assets.

iiy  The available-for-sale securities are liquid securities listed on the recognised stock
exchanges. Given their high credit standing, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

i)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit - rating agencies.

iv) The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

b)  Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and/or from other groups to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following liquidity tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can be required to
pay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Contractual undiscounted

cash outflow
Total Carrying
Within contractual amount
1 year or undiscounted at 31
on demand cash flow December
HK$ HK$ HK$
For the year ended 31 December
2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Accruals and other payables 6,678,693 6,678,693 6,678,693
For the year ended 31 December
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Accruals and other payables 10,333,627 10,333,627 10,333,627

c) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank interest
on cash and deposits.

The effective interest rates per annum relating to cash at bank and time deposits at the
end of the reporting period ranges from 0.01% to 1.63% (2016: 0.01% to 3.60%) for the
Group.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s deficit for the year and increase/decrease the Group's general fund by
approximately HK$229,000 (2016: HK$525,000). Other components of equity would
not be affected (2016: HK$NIl) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase represents management's assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the end of next reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
d) Currency risk

The Group’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. The Group is exposed to
currency risk through cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
United States dollars (“USD"). As the Hong Kong dollar (‘HKD”) is pegged to the USD,
the Group does not expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general increase or decrease in 5% of
exchange rates, with all variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
deficit for the year and increase/decrease the Group’s general fund by approximately
HK$10,000 (2016: HK$244,000).

e) Fair values measurement
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, all financial instruments measured at fair value fall into
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

f) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from listed equity investments.
The Group's listed investments are listed on recognised stock exchange. Listed
investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their

longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f) Price risk (Continued)

The Council monitors the market price risk of the investments individually and
estimated that a 5% increase/decrease in market prices of equity securities at 31
December 2017, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s deficit for the year (and increase/decrease the Group's general fund) and
increase/decrease the Group’s other components of reserve by HK$nil and HK$2.9
million respectively (2016: HK$nil and HK$2.8 million respectively).

18. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting
period.

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for
its items of property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to the ones previously estimated, and it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

b)  Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on the
council members’ regular review of aging analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual member. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in there financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related party transaction:

Transactions with key management personnel

All members of key management personnel are the council member of the Academy, and no
remuneration was paid to them during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

20. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

21.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Academy received scrip dividends of
HK$1,932,902 (2016: HK$1,700,630) from the Academy’s available-for-sale securities.

ACADEMY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale securities

Current assets
Inventories — general merchandise
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amount due from a special purpose
entity
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Receipts in advance
Creditors and accrued charges

Net current assets
Net assets
Reserve and funds

Fair value reserve
General fund

Note 2017 2016
HK$ HK$

71,480,710 57,004,373

57,598,377 55,432,225
129,079,087 112,436,598

216,278 245,180

9,720,104 6,742,522

17,752 16,841

8,569,628 21,783,529

18,523,762 28,788,072

10,830 12,641

6,662,194 10,317,627
(6,673,024) (10,330,268)

11,850,738 18,457,804
140,929,825 130,894,402
14

11,444,933 69,564

129,484,892 130,824,838
140,929,825 130,894,402

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 19 July 2018.

On behalf of the Council

Ao

Prof. Lau Chak-sing
President

il

Dr. Chow Yu-fat
Honorary Treasurer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

22. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based Payment: Classification

and measurement of share-based payment transactions 1 January 2018
Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property:

Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance

consideration 1 January 2018
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the group has identified some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the group. The group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets, including the
measurement of impairment for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand,
HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for
recognition.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 on a
retrospective basis. The Group plans to use the exemption from restating comparative

information and will recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

22. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s financial statements are as follows:
(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets:
measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

- The classification for debt instruments is determined based on the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then
interest revenue, impairment and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in
profit or loss.

- For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless of the entity's
business model. The only exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity
security is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security will
be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments on that security will
be recognised in other comprehensive income without recycling.

The Company has assessed that its financial assets currently measured at amortised
cost and FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and measurements
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

Equity investments currently held as available for sale will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply the option to present fair value
changes in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss
when the investments are derecognised.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities under HKFRS
9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of that
financial liability's credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement will not have any
impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

22. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with an “expected credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no
longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure either a 12-month expected
credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that the application of the expected credit loss
model will result in earlier recognition of credit losses. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the Group has assessed how its impairment provisions would be affected
by the new model. So far it has concluded that there would be no material impact for
the application of the new impairment requirements.

(c) Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements relating to measuring and
recognising ineffectiveness under HKAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The Group
currently does not have hedge accounting and therefore this new requirement will not
have any impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group concluded that the adoption of
HKFRS 15 is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
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EEMNEEL EEAEEAE ISHE IR
China Affairs Committee
hEHEEZEE
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Editor Prof. Martin Wong
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Members Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. David Fang Dr. C.C. Lau Prof. C.S. Lau
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Dr. Y.L. Yu
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Editor-in-Chief Prof. Martin Wong
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Editorial Board (Hong Kong Medical Journal)
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Editors Dr. Gavin Chan Dr. K.S. Chan Dr. David Chao Dr. W. Cheuk
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Dr. T.W. Chiu Dr. Paul Choi Dr. James Fung Dr. Brian Ho
LB L EiFEEREL THEIREE fAIBREEE
Prof. Ellis Hon Dr. K.W. Huang Dr. W.K. Hung Dr. Bonnie Kwan
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Dr. James Luk Dr. Arthur Mak Dr. Henry Mak Dr. Jacobus Ng
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Me=rlnbers Prof. Sabaratnam Arulkumaran Prof. Robert Atkins Prof. Peter Cameron
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Prof. Arthur Kleinman Prof. Stephen Leeder Prof. Xiaoping Luo
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Prof. Max Wintermark Prof. Atsuyuki Yamataka Prof. Homer Yang
Prof. K.G. Yeoh Prof. Matthew Yung
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Working Group on Genetic and Genomics
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Human Resources Subcommittee
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Working Group on Professional Indemnity Insurance
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aH

*Until 30 June 2018
BHZE 20186 H30H
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25th Anniversary Organising Committee

25 IR EWER T

Chairman Dr. C.C. Lau

FE Elpepali=a

Members Prof. Anthony Chan Prof. Henry Chan Dr. Y.C. Chan Dr. P.P. Chen

%8 BRISEHIR BRI TTEE BRIEREEEL B EEL
Dr. Ralph Cheung Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. Tom Ho Dr. Elaine Kan
RBREL RS EL AEmeELs ELAEEEE
Dr. Bernard Kong Prof. C.S. Lau Prof. Gilberto Leung Prof. Martin Wong
JTRAEREEA BERIR ARG BEEAHIR
Dr. Frankie Yeung
BRI EE

Publication Subcommittee
MiR/NAZ B &

Co-Chairmen Prof. Anthony Chan Prof. Gilberto Leung

BEERE BRISEHIR REHHIR

Members Dr. Edmund Fong Dr. Julian Fong* Dr. Angeline Lee

£8 TEEREL HEICEE TEERL

*Until 30 June 2018

BHZE2018¢ 6 A30H

Scientific Subcommittee
B ML B

Co-Chairmen Dr. Y.C. Chan Dr. P.P. Chen

BEERE BRIBRFEEAE BB L

Members Dr. Victor Abdullah Dr. Anthony Chan Dr. T.N. Chan Prof. K.M. Chu

=8 AEEEL BROKIRES A BREREEEEL RERHE
Dr. Daniel Fang Dr. W.S. Kong Dr. Bassanio Law Prof. W.K. Leung
Pakitaa e PR FEIFHERRL RiF@HI
Dr. Arthur Mak Dr. S.P. Mak Prof. Enders Ng Dr. C.M. Ngai
BIVEE BEREL REEHE MExEL
Dr. Kendrick Shih Dr. Sunny Tse Dr. Winnie Tse Dr. K.K. Wong
Mels i EE A HHfRgREEL BIEEL Even Il
Prof. Martin Wong Dr. William Wong Dr. M.F. Yuen
B5EARIR BEHEEL REmlEE

A ELMPLELEE 201848 Bl

105




Appendix 1 [ff &% —

Social Subcommittee

RN ZE
Chairman Dr. Elaine Kan
IE ELIEELE
Members Dr. Samuel Chow Dr. Joan Fok Dr. Tom Ho Dr. Bernard Kong
=8 AXEEE EMEREL AEmeELs STARBREEA
Dr. Shiobhon Luk Dr. Vivian Ng Dr. Kathleen So
PEgzEEL RIpEEL RrREEEL

Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute

0 B RS 6 S0 B o 5 2 R O

Governing Board

Py
Chairman Dr. Donald Li
TE TEIREE
Vice-chairman Prof. C.S. Lau
BIEE ZEREHIR
Members Prof. Francis Chan Dr. C.C. Lau Prof. Gabriel Leung Mrs. Margaret Leung
£8 PR B gkl = REBEHIR REFEHRLT
Mr. Gregory Lo Mr. Jimmy Yuen
Bk E Y S

Advisors Dr. Heston Kwong Mr. George Lee Dr. S. H. Liu
B8RS BB BE A FBEEE Bl MEEELt

(until 18 August 2018) (until 31 July 2018)

(EE 2018 8H18H) (HEZE201847H31H)

Executive Committee

WIHZEY
Chairman Dr. Donald Li
E TEIREE
Members Prof. Henry Chan Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. C.C. Lau
=B BT Gl e AR EL kel
Prof. C.S. Lau Prof. Gilberto Leung
BREHIR REHHIR
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Programme Committee

HHZE®
Chairman Dr. C.C. Lau
IE Elperali=as
Members Prof. Emily Chan Dr. P.P. Chen Dr. H.F. Ho Dr. L.P. Leung
=8 BRACE AR B EEL I yEEE A ROHEL
(until 20 October 2017)
(EZE2017410R20H)
Dr. Axel Siu Dr. Thomas Tsang
w|EREL BnEEA

(from 20 October 2017)
(AA2017#£ 108 20 H
Fa)

Ex-officio Member Dr. Donald Li
ERES TERELE

Quality Assurance and Finance Committee

HERREMM LR

IE]Y

Chairman Dr. Y.F. Chow

*E AL

Members Mr. Raymond Chan Dr. P.P. Chen Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. C.C. Lau

=8 BREMBEE B BE L BB L 2155884
Prof. C.S. Lau Dr. H.T. Luk Ms. Nancy Tse
BRI PEEEE A4 AR L

Ex-officio Member Dr. Donald Li

ERES TEREL

Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine

A v 5 RS A0 B AR I O

Advisory Committee

Y R
Chairman Dr. C.C. Lau
£ 2551884
Members Dr. P.P. Chen Ms. Eva Lam Prof. C.S. Lau Prof. Giberto Leung
£3- BB st BERIR RE GBI
Dr. H.T. Luk Dr. Sharon Wong
ozt fad =IAMREEL
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Operation Committee

BEZE®
Chairman Dr. P.P. Chen
IE BB
Members Dr. T.N. Chan Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. Benny Cheng Dr. Dominic Foo
=8 BREREZEEL BRpiEsEE ERRFREE A HEREL
Dr. Patricia Kan Ms. Eva Lam Dr. George Ng Dr. H.Y. So
EEEEE WS 2+ RESIREEL ERERREEL
Dr. Abraham Wai Prof. George Wong
HRIEEL BRI
Education Subcommittee
BENMEZESG
Chairman Prof. George Wong
FE HEEHEHIER
Members Dr. Johnny Chan Dr. K.F. Chan Dr. K.H. Chan Dr. Phyllis Chan
Z£8 BRIEXXEEL BREGEEBEL PRREEEEL PREREBEE
Dr. Y.K. Chan Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. Anthony Chu Dr. Dominic Foo
BREcIHEEL [AREEL REEEL HEREL
Dr. Raymond Ho Dr. F.T. Lee Dr. W.L. Poon Dr. Edmond Pow
fAIEEAREE A TEERL EEBEL HEREEE L
Dr. K. W. So Dr. K.K. Tang Prof. Clement Tham
BreEEL BREREE L BEEHE
Quality Management Subcommittee
HEeEBi/ IZEY
Chairman Dr. H.Y. So
IE BREEERES A
Members Dr. Marco Chan Dr. Benny Cheng Dr. Ralph Cheung Dr. Sara Cheung
£8 BRr&EEL BRIRFREE A REREL TRONE L
Ms. Josephine Chung  Mr. S.K. Kan Dr. Carmen Lam Dr. Terry Lau
EHEL L kRS E MEEEL I REL
Dr. SW. Law Dr. Shirley Ngai
EMFEE mmEEL
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Research and Development Subcommittee

Dr. T.N. Chan
PREREREE A

Dr. Jacky Chan
BREZGEE T

Prof. George Wong
=R

wrag /L% B

Dr. Y.F. Choi
EFREREA

Dr. Dominic Foo

BEREL

Dr. Abraham Wai
(HEN s

Honorary Advisors

Dr. Francis Mok

Prof. Nivritti Gajanan

ZEEEM RENEL Patil

Honorary Director Dr. P.P. Chen

ZEHEE BB

Honorary Deputy Dr. T.N. Chan Dr. H.Y. So Prof. George Wong

Directors PReREEBE A4 BREEEREE AL e

ZERIMEE

Honorary Assistant Dr. Dominic Foo Dr. Patricia Kan Dr. Leonard Sin Dr. Conti Yuen

Directors BEEEL EIEEEL RHERREE L et d

ZEIPLEE

CMS Visiting Dr. Timothy James Dr. T.N. Chan Dr. Ralph Cheung Dr. Sara Cheung

Scholars Brake PREEBE A4 REREL FNEEE

R AR B - - ,

th) IR EE Dr. Dominic Foo Dr. Patricia Kan Dr. Leonard Sin Dr. H.Y. So
HEEREL A B FHERREE AL BRERREEL
Prof. George Wong Dr. Conti Yuen
EEiaE e P =84t

A ELMPLELEE 201848 Bl
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Representation of the Academy

EH AR

HKAM Representatives in Other Organisations

SR I B A P AR

Organisation

Committee

HKAM Representative(s)

Hig £EE® BEpRK
Food and Health Bureau, Consultative Group on Voluntary Health Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Insurance Scheme BZEHEF
BEREBNRY M EE BB {R5t BIFEF/NE
Food and Health Bureau, Assessment Panel for the Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Commissioned Study on Healthcare ZEEHIR
BEEREBNRYNEER Manpower Planning and Projection

ZAE R — BRA RS LS

/NE
Food and Health Bureau, High Level Steering Committee on Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Antimicrobial Resistance ZEEHIR

EEFERFRYMEE

NERMELSEESRES

Food and Health Bureau,

HKSAR Government
HEFERBITRY NEE

Advisory Group on Antibiotics
Stewardship in Primary Care

ERBFRNEREELRA/NE

Prof. Martin Wong
BEEAHR

Food and Health Bureau,

Committee on Promotion of

Dr. Matthew Tsui

HKSAR Government Breastfeeding RiGEEL
HERFEBIFRYEESE RESIREHEES
Food and Health Bureau, Health and Medical Research Fund - Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Research Fellowship Assessment Panel REE IR
BEFRBTRY MEE BEGEMRES —MRESTEES

8%
Food and Health Bureau, Assessment Panel for Commissioned Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government study on Healthcare Manpower ZEZEHIR
EEFBEBTRYREE Planning and Projection (Extended

Study)

R —BEADREILHESE (5

BftgT) HE/ A
Food and Health Bureau, Assessment Panel for the Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Commissioned Study on Regulatory B2 E2HS

ERRERARYLEE

Framework for Healthcare
Professionals (Extended Study)
Zit R —BREEAESNEERE
(R Fh/E

Food and Health Bureau,

Steering Committee on Genomic

Prof. Martin Wong

HKSAR Government Medicine BEEHE
EBEREBTRY REE ARAEEEERES

Food and Health Bureau, Committee on Promotion of Organ Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Donation REE IR
EERBBTEY AEE REREEERZES

Food and Health Bureau, Task Force on e-Health Record Dr. H.T. Luk
HKSAR Government Radiology Image Sharing FEEEE AL
BEFRBTRY MREE BrERAHRBNEGREBREE/E

Food and Health Bureau, Steering Committee on e-Health Dr. Gene Tsoi
HKSAR Government Record Sharing fasy/Nes
BEARBRBTRYLEER BYRERAHOBEEELZES Dr. Raymond Yung
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HKAM Representatives in Other Organisations

S B 7R A e 9 AR
Organisation Committee HKAM Representative(s)
g £EE BEpRE
Food and Health Bureau, Working Group on Data and Dr. Gene Tsoi
HKSAR Government Information Standards (e-Health HERELY

EREREBARYEEER

Record Office)
SIRNMEERET/ENE (BEFHEE
LB ER )

Food and Health Bureau,
HKSAR Government

EEFERARYNELER

Domain Group on eHR Content and
Information Standards - Role-based
Access Control

BT RERALHEABRNESEEERR)N
4 — B BE R B A E R

Dr. Mark Chan
PREEEEE

Food and Health Bureau,
HKSAR Government
BERERBITROREER

Working Group on Legal, Privacy and
Security Issues (e-Health Record
Office)

R BWRLARZEBELENE (8
FRERACERAMER )

Dr. Danny Lee
TRMEEE

Department of Health,

Project Steering Committee on

Prof. Gilberto Leung

HKSAR Government Standards for Ambulatory Facilities R BHIR
EENBRBNEEE HEEEMEREEEELERES Prof. Raymond Liang
Department of Health, Task Force on Regulation of Advanced Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Therapeutic Products B2 E2EHE

ERFERNREEE

RETBAERFEREEE

The Medical Council of Hong Kong
BERELEEES

The Medical Council of Hong Kong
(Policy Meeting)
BEREBEEES (REH)

Dr. S.F. Hung (until 30 June 2018)
BEE A4 (HE2018F6A30H)
Dr. Y.F. Chow

Dr. C.C. Lau
e el
The Medical Council of Hong Kong Education and Accreditation Prof. Gilberto Leung
EAREKEES Committee PN e R
BBENTERES Dr. H.T. Luk
FEEEE A
The Medical Council of Hong Kong Panel of Assessors Dr. Thomas Lai
EBEHEES EHEREZEH RGEEL
Dr. Francis Mok
EERNEL
The Medical Council of Hong Kong Member, Accreditation Exercise of the Dr. Y.F. Chow
EHEREES Medical Education and Training of The AMZEELE
Chinese University of Hong Kong and
The University of Hong Kong
HERANRENETEREBRERET N
FlBRETE T /E— 5T/ 48
Hospital Authority Task Force on Limited Registration Prof. C.S. Lau
BEIEER Scheme B2 2SI
BREFMTEES/NA
Hospital Authority Forum on Training Collaboration Prof. Henry Chan
BERr TR Between HA and HKAM R T
EERAEENEIISFENEEN W Dr. C.C. Lau
o= e peall-es)
Prof. C.S. Lau
B2 E2HF
Prof. Gilberto Leung
REBBIR
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HKAM Representatives in Other Organisations

Appendix 2 [ff 8% —

T SR At B A 9 AR R
Organisation Committee HKAM Representative(s)
iz R8T BEMRE

Hospital Authority

Central Training and Development

Prof. Gilberto Leung

BREER Committee PR
RREIIABEREES

Hospital Authority Simulation Training Committee Dr. P.P. Chen

ElaE B EE S By BE A

Hospital Authority

Scientific Programme Committee,

Prof. Gilberto Leung

BREER HA Convention 2018 RRGHIR
2018 Bfx g RMEIRE
BREES
Hospital Authority Advisory Panel on the Clinical Services Dr. Y.F. Chow
B fREIR e Plan for Kowloon West Cluster ML
NEEP S ER PR AR 755 2
AN
Hong Kong Dental Association Advisor, Hong Kong International Prof. C.S. Lau
BRI EEg Dental Expo And Symposium B2 2 HT
(HKIDEAS) 2018
2018 FHEBEBRI N HEEMNG
— AR
Hong Kong Museum of Medical Honorary Advisor Prof. C.S. Lau
Sciences Society e ZEEHIR
BEEBERYEES
The Hong Kong Academy of Nursing Honorary Advisor Prof. C.S. Lau
BBEEERER =I5 ZVEEHIR
Active Healthy Kids Global Alliance Member of Stakeholder Group, Hong Prof. C.S. Lau
SENERRESIERE Kong Report Card on Physical Activity B2 2SR
for Children and Youth
BEERBENBTIOFERERSRER—
FinEHARKE
Labour Department, HKSAR The Occupational Deafness Medical Dr. C.M. Ngai
Government Committee HEXEL
BB EBUTS TR BEMABEEEES Dr. T.Y. Lo
Bk BELE
Chief Secretary for Administration’s Community Care Fund Task Force Prof. C.S. Lau
Office BAEESHEE/NA ZPEEHIR
BBEARRBAE
International Association of Medical Continued Competency Working Group Prof. C.S. Lau
Regulatory Authorities SERe D TE/NE B2 2%
Bl E R E SRS

International Association of Medical
Regulatory Authorities
BRSBTS

Research and Education Working
Group
EINE . S MR (AIVE]

Prof. Gilberto Leung
RE GBI

University Grants Committee
REHEEPERER

Health Sciences Panel, Hong Kong
Research Assessment Exercise 2020
2020 FEREMRTE LF—EEK

BEMNSRES

Dr. Victor Tang
HEmEL
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HKAM Representatives on Scientific Meetings (China and Overseas)

H R B ek (A il Ah) 2 WA

Date (DD/MM/YYYY)  Scientific Meeting Organiser HKAM Representative(s)
HE (H/ R/ %) BivEE TR BEpRE
08-10/09/2017 2017 Summit Forum of China’s Chinese Medical Doctor Dr. Donald Li
Standardised Medical Residency ~ Association TEREL
Training RS S Dr. C.C. Lau
2017 FEEFE R RE SIS eyl e
3] Dr. Y.F. Chow
College representatives
PRIEZBER R
04-06/10/2017 2017 Continued Competency International Association of Prof. C.S. Lau
Symposium Medical Regulatory Authorities BZEHX
2017 FBRE DB R IR EEE MBS
18/10/2017 International Medical Education Royal College of Physicians and Dr. Donald Li
Leaders Forum Surgeons of Canada TEREAE
BB B E BT MERERRIMIEER Prof. Gilberto Leung
ARG
09/01/2018 Annual General Meeting Chinese Medical Doctor Dr. Donald Li
PHEFEREZRS Association TEREAE
RS Dr. Y.F. Chow
13-17/01/2018 Examiner, Final Fellowship Bangladesh College of Phsyicians  Prof. C.S. Lau
Examination and Surgeons ZEEHR
BRI EEE RIS B EE Bt
26-27/01/2018 2018 Annual Academic Meeting Chinese Medical Association Prof. C.S. Lau
of Chinese Medical Association FRIEEEEE B22HF
& The 2nd PAK-China Medical Dr. Y.F. Chow
Congress & Belt and Road Forum EMZEE
of Medical Associations
2018 FhEEEGBTF &R
FEPEREERGE T —
i BREEamE
30-31/03/2018 Sun Yat-sen International Forum The First Affiliated Hospital- Prof. C.S. Lau
on Medical Education Sun Yat-sen University (SYSU), BE2 AT
L EEHE R RE Zhongshan School of Medicine,
SYSU and Guangdong Medical
Doctor Association
FRILAREMIESE—ERT ~ ALK
B BERNERBEMRS
19-21/04/2018 Internal Medicine Meeting American College of Physicians Prof. C.S. Lau
FEARGH ERAR BT BEERIR
14-16/05/2018 RACP Congress Royal Australasian College of Prof. C.S. Lau
ENERAREERE R Physicians 232 B #HIT
BN E K AR B
26-29/07/2018 131st Anniversary International Sri Lanka Medical Association Dr. Donald Li
Medical Congress e rEES FEREA
BT EREERER
27-29/07/201 52nd Malaysia-Singapore Academy of Medicine of Malaysia  Prof. C.S. Lau
Congress of Medicine BRI BB ER &R B2 E2HT
A+ EERMLE — AN Dr. C.C. Lau
BHae® ekl e
Prof. Gilberto Leung
RRGHIR
Dr. Y.F. Chow
Prof. Martin Wong
College Presidents
PRI R
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Fellowship Statistics

e+ B %

(as of August 2018 #ZE2018%F8H)

College No. of Fellows
43 B2 B b L#H
Anaesthesiologists i B st 538
Community Medicine HEES 199
Dental Surgeons 758 309
Emergency Medicine SER 373
Family Physicians e 474
Obstetricians & Gynaecologists ~ IFER! 499
Ophthalmologists ARt 305
Orthopaedic Surgeons =5 464
Otorhinolaryngologists BEE2ER 169
Paediatricians "R 642
Pathologists RIEEER 290
Physicians AESS 1,743
Psychiatrists ERGER 392
Radiologists ST 557
Surgeons At 951

TOtal N;L‘\

. 7,905

Anaesthesiologists fif BER
Community Medicine 3 &E£2
Dental Surgeons 7%}
Emergency Medicine ZiER}H
Family Physicians SREEESE3
Obstetricians & Gynaecologists f&ZE &
Ophthalmologists AR}
Orthopaedic Surgeons &%}
Otorhinolaryngologists B 2R}
Paediatricians 525}
Pathologists fFIEEER
Physicians A&}

Psychiatrists ¥&# %}
Radiologists &%}

Surgeons #h&}

|
1000 1500 2000

gl
o —
o

Note: There are 70 Academy Fellows who possess Fellowship in two or more different specialties.

it AAT0MT R A LA E R e &

[
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List of New Fellows in 2017
20174 /5 3G e+ 4 B

New Fellows admitted at the Extraordinary General Meeting on 22 June 2017

£ 2017 4F 6 H 22 HB4T 2 4R & b il 7 3 e+
The following nominations were approved by Council on 22 June 2017 (Total: 101 Fellows).
LITRAER 2017 £ 6 A 22 HERBZESHE (£ 101 Akt ) -

The Hong Kong College of Anaesthesiologists (10 Fellows)

EFEMBHESRE (10 kL)

Chan Chor San, Alfred  Chow Ka Ying Ko Hiu Fai Lam Ka Hing Lau Kai Chiu
{pecpod ARf EEEE e 2IRRER

Li Wing Yin, Vanessa Luk Ho Yan, Jenny Tong Sau Ki Yang Li Chuan, Marc Yim Tsz Kin
=SSP BRI iR BT &) BT
Hong Kong College of Community Medicine (3 Fellows)

FEEMTEESEMR (3 fUfrt)

Chan King Hong Fung On Yee, Connie  Lee Ha Yun

BRRER B FER

The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong (9 Fellows)

EAFRIEBR (9 fifrt)

Au Yeung King Sang Chan Wing Ho, Boris Lai, lan Albert Lee Kit Yee Ng Sheung Chun
EREEiEA BRK = RER TEHE RIBY

Ng Yuen Wai Praisarnti, Chonrada So Cheuk Hang Tse Chi Man

RmE = RER BB #a

Hong Kong College of Emergency Medicine (5 Fellows)

BASERIEZER (5 ubRt)

Chan Tsun Bong, Cheung Hay Lok Leung Kit Yan Tse Chiu Lun Wu Kwok Kei
Simon RE% 2R HiRA FARE

BREZF

The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (7 Fellows)
EEREEZEMR (7 Ufrt)

Cheng Hei Wan Cho Yin Fan Hau Sin Ying, Cindy Kwong Hon Kei Kwong Lok See
EEE BHRS (S R B eSS

Tse Sut Yee Wong Kwai Sheung

EAES R

The Hong Kong College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (5 Fellows)

HamEMNSR (5 ubkt)

Chan On Yee Lau Chiu Fan Shu, Wendy Tang Sui Man, Janet Yeung Suet Ying
BRZ1E ELEEAY IR =i75:9 e

The College of Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong (2 Fellows)
EARRESMR (2 fifrt)

Tsim Chui Hang, Wong Lai Man,
Nicole Raymond
ERT EHEX

The Hong Kong College of Orthopaedic Surgeons (3 Fellows)
BEEERESMR (3 fubit)

Ho Kwong Ting
AR

Hung Leong Pan
A

Ng Cheuk Kee,
Kenneth

REHE
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The Hong Kong College of Otorhinolaryngologists (2 Fellows)
EEESREIESEMR (2 ufrt)

Lo Fook Wai
EfEE

Yeung Wing Chi, Zenon

B

Hong Kong College of Paediatricians (4 Fellows)

FERHESMR (4 Ubt)

Chan Wai Man Ip Ka lan See Wing Shan Yu Kwong Man

BREE BEm T sEH REX

The Hong Kong College of Pathologists (9 Fellows)

FERIEBERZMR (9 fufrt)

Au Yuen Ling, Elaine Chak Pui Kwan Cheung Tin Yan, Elaine Chik Kar Ki Lok King Fung
Bz BEmE RRE i ER BT 4%

Ng Kwan Shing Tse, Herman Wong Cheuk Ying, Sally ~ Yeung Chun Wing

RITH Ei)1°e E=Y [ Z1==PIN

Hong Kong College of Physicians (6 Fellows)
EEREIESEMRR (6 fufrt)

Hui Wai Shan
EaR=sSill]

Teo Kay Cheong
kA

Leung Chun Yu
RIRTF

Li Chun Man
=78

Luk Yee, Andrew
[ERE

Shea Puigi, Catherine
N ib=2

The Hong Kong College of Psychiatrists (7 Fellows)
BEERBWRIEZER (7 frt)

Chik Dan Wai, Janice

Tin Ngai Wa
MR

Hon King Him, Simon

TR

Yeung Tin Yan, Terence

BRE

Ip Pak In, Brian
EHA

Lee Sau Wa, Joyce
TR

Leung Pui Hang
217

Hong Kong College of Radiologists (22 Fellows)

FRMARESMR (22 fubtt)

Chan Chun Wan,
Dominic

BREZF

Lai Yee Tak, Alta

Lee Chun
e

Tsang Yin Ho, Arnold

wEE

Yeung Ting Yan
BER

Chan Chung Yan,
Grace
PR0E B

Lam Ho Ching
MOmE

Lee Chun Yin, Jonan

FRE

Tse Man Lap, Donald
HRIL

Yeung Wui Ming
B

Cheung Kai Yat,
Kenneth
REEE

Lam Yuk Ting
HEE

Lee Wai Man, Sarah
=BG

Wai Ka Heng, Ophelia
(S

Cheung Wai Man,
Lilian

REX

Lau Kin Sang
Bt

Mahboobani, Neeraj
Ramesh

Wong Chun Wai,
Kenneth
FHEE

Chiang, Jeanie Betsy

RHEE

Lee Chiu Wing,
Alexander
S

Szeto On Yee, Michelle
AfERE

Wong Ting

"IF

The College of Surgeons of Hong Kong (7 Fellows)
BEIEIESR (7 ubtt)

Chan Ngo Lun, Allan Ho Lok Yan Ho Wai Yee Lau Cham Yat, Mak Chi Chuen,
BeR (R A& BR BES- Vincent Clarence
B BEE
Pang Suet Ying Yu Chi Hung
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New Fellows admitted at the 24th Annual General Meeting on 15 December 2017

AE 2017 45 12 A 15 HEAT 2588 =1 VY Ja J8 48 K e b Wi ah i 7 8 pe

The following nominations were approved by Council on 15 December 2017 (Total: 155 Fellows).

DIMREER 2017 £ 12 A 15 HERBES

SHbE (3£ 155 fubrt)

The Hong Kong College of Anaesthesiologists (14 Fellows)
FEMEFIESER (14 ffrt)

Cham Yin Kwan Chan Wai Kit, Jacky Chow Sui Yi
BB BRiE AEE

Hung Ching Yue, Lam Chi Cheong Lam Wing Yan
Janice WES KB

ILER

So Ching, Vincent Tse Shuk Wah Wong Hang Pui
BRI N E)

Chun Man Wai
=g

Li Wing Sze
23 24

K

Yim Fong, Christopher
BAX

Fung Shui Wing

Luk Ting Hin
BEREST

Hong Kong College of Community Medicine (6 Fellows)
EETEEZEMR (6 fUftt)

Chak Miu Yi Ko Pat Sing, Tony Koh Yi Mien Ni Yuxuan, Michael Sin Ngai Chuen
BZia [k LB Rt HER
Wong Ming Yan, Sharon
ELCIN
The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong (4 Fellows)
FEETHESMR (4 ubtt)
Lam Wai Fung Lau Chi Mun, Clement  Nowak-Solinska, Eva Yeung Yat Cheong
wEE 2185 Louise BHE
EAEE

Hong Kong College of Emergency Medicine (15 Fellows)
BESERESR (15 fIfrt)
Chan Chi Fung Chan Che Ying, Chau Hung Pan Cheng Ka Lok Chiu Yu Koon
PR Denise JE R B ZR 44 S

BRER
Choi Sze Yi Choy Siu Man Ho Yu Kit Lau Chun Kit Lau Wan Kay
IS 5BE GIEEYES BIER L Bl
Lau Yat Chung, Lee Hung Fai Li Chun Him Soong Chieh Pin, Wong Sai Hang
Thomas ZRNE TR Banny =itE
2358 REHH

The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (3 Fellows)
FEEREBZER (3 fufzt)

Chan Hau Ting Chau Hoi Ki, Samantha Yip Wing Ki
BRI5IZ SRE 3 TEER

The Hong Kong College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (10 Fellows)

FBWERSMR (10 iIfRL)

Chan Sum Yee Cheng Ka Ning, Hui, Winnie

G Katherine FTEKEF
EZE

Lui Kwai Ying Ng, Karen Tse Sin Ying

B REK HER

Lee Ying, Andrea

Tse Wing Ting
SRS

Lee Ho Yin, Diana
TRE

Wan Ho Yan
FER
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The College of Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong (7 Fellows)
FERMESMR (7 ibtt)

Kam Ka Wai
HE#E

Lok Ying Ching
N

Kwok Sze Wai, Jeremy  Lau Sing Lok, Charles

John

SRR

Wu Mei Sze
[ESS

2B 7 2

Li Churk Yat, Brian
gk

Liu Chi Han, Candice
BEIE

The Hong Kong College of Orthopaedic Surgeons (17 Fellows)
BEEERESR (17 ubzt)

Chan Chun Fung
BRREE

Lai Kam Keung

FRsRR

Lo Chi Kin
i

Tam Ka Ki
B

Chan Ka Chun,
Jonathan
=S

Lam Yuen Fai
BRI

Lo Cho Yau
EfE

Wong Yu Chung
=5FR

Chan Pui Kan
(GO0

Lau Chi Kay, Janice
E=ga

Lok Lin Wing
FREENK

Cheung Chi Nok
e

Lau Ka Chi
BIRE

Ng Wai Kit, Raymond
REH

Kung Kam Ling
BE§REY

Lee Syn Yuk, Michelle

Siu Yuk Chuen
e

The Hong Kong College of Otorhinolaryngologists (3 Fellows)
EEESREIESEMR (3 ufrt)

Chu Po Ngai, Alvin
KEF

Lau Hui Lun, Eric
2| i 4R

Leung Oi Sum, Iris
ES

Hong Kong College of Paediatricians (19 Fellows)
EEREESER (19 fifrt)

Chan Mo Kit
PR

Chan Wing Ki
BRI

Chan Wing Shan
BRFELM

Chan Yau Ki, Wilson
BRAGAT

Cheong Kai Ning
EY

Cheung Wing Lum Chow Chit Kwong Ho Tsz Wai Ho Yung Yung Lam Jenks, Albinus
SRARI AEX fATkeE GES MEE
Lam Kwan Fung Lam Man Chun Lee Hau Man Liu King Shun Pang Lap lan
MREFIE MR FTEY B A/
Sit Kei Kei, Jacqueline  To Pui On, Simon Tsang Wing Yan Wong Pik Fung
BEEHE el LR TER.
The Hong Kong College of Pathologists (1 Fellow)
EEREBZENZMR (1 Uubkt)
Sridhar, Siddharth
Hong Kong College of Physicians (16 Fellows)
EERFESMT (16 iubfrt)
Chan Chi Him, Simon  Cheng Hei Shun Choi Wai Lok Ho Tsz Chung Leung Hoi Tik
BRANH WEE e GRS RY
Leung Wai Hung Leung Yuen Ling, Erica Ma Siu Pang Mak Ka Pui Tam Ho Chi
REAL 2N B0 5= E iy
Tang Chun Pong Wong Hang Hoi, Wong Sze Man Wu Wai Fuk Yeung Wing Yin
BRHRFR Michael T tAELE &Rt

EyEpis)
Yip Pui Lun
Emim
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The Hong Kong College of Psychiatrists (13 Fellows)
FEBWRIESR (13 {frt)

Au Chi Hung Au Ho See, Coral Chiu Wing Yan Choi Yan Yin Chong Wang Lam
BERE & & FEEEEIN N HESATAR
Kwan Man Man Kwok Ching Ying Lam Hiu Ha Lam Yun Ting, Lo Yan Tung, Lilian
B8 SFEpLs MBEER Christina ERY
WEE
Wong Kit Wa Wong Wing Ho Yan Pak Kan
=R =HXR ;AE
Hong Kong College of Radiologists (6 Fellows)
BEERSIFIESR (6 [frt)
Cheng Shan Shan Fung Sin Yue, Cindy Lee Kar Ho Ng Fung Him Wu Kwan Kit
SRS B0 50 REGk [EE=EES

Yu Ka Tung, Stanley

BRI

The College of Surgeons of Hong Kong (21 Fellows)
EFAEIIRIERR (21 IfEL)

Cheung Hing Fong

REFS

Fung Man Yuen,
Arthur
IR

Kotewall, Clarence

Nicholas

7T
Wong Chun Lam

Yuen Ming Him
EXE S

Chiu Hiu Fung,
Jennifer

izl

Hui Hon Cheung
BT

Lee Hing Yin, Harry

ZEMR

Wong Hei Yi
E s

Cho Kam Wah
SRk

Hung Wing Suet, Judy
FLkE

Mak Chung Kiu,
Joanna

ZIEIE
Wong Po Yan

Chow Kwan Ho

& &

Hwang Wan Wui,
Winston

HHE

Siu Yin Yu

Wong Yu Yan
eyl

Chu Chi Ho, Alberto
+ =
OAS]

Kam Ming Ho, Philip
HAx

Tsang Shun, Julian
B

Yip Siu Man
HEY

A ELMPLELEE 201848 Bl
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Organisational Structure of the Academy

B

Ay A A

Council and Committees

RBREEREETE

Chief Executive Officer

1TENAEES

Chief Operations Officer

LB
Managing Editor Senior Executive
yhiEsE Manager
o SIRAITEEIE
Corporate Affairs Finance Education a
Tt E7E %5 HKJC
Innovative
Events Publication Human Resources Membership Learning f]('tntre for
AERE AR ANER =5 Medicine
’ EHEES
External Affairs Office Facilites, AV, IT Bl EHT
HIVEF Administration Z05E - THEE - 2l gy
1T BaRER
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